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F"ILto 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF C~LIFORNIA 

January 2014 Grand Jury 

UNITED STATES.OF AMERICA; 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ASHOT SANAMIAN,
DAVID EJ-kRR"I'SBN~,

ELZA BUDAGOVA, 
·THEODORE CHANGKI YOON; 

PHIC LIM, 
aka "PK, 11 and 

PERRY TAN NGUYEN, 

Defendants. 

 
 --·-----·----·--

-

CR No. 11-922 (B)-DDP 

SECOND 
SUPERSEPING 
INDICTMENT-
[2LU.S.C. § 846: Conspiracy to 

·Distribute Controlled · 
si;i.bst<trrc,,-~is-u-;-sc:c;-:-§-137±:!1::--
conspiracy to Commit Health Care
Fraud; 31 u.s.c. § 5324 (a) (3): 
Structuring Financial 
Transactions; .18· U.S .C .. 
§ 1957 (a)-, Transactional Money 
Laundering; 18 u. S. c. § 2: 
Aiding·and Abetting and Causing 
an Act to Be.Done; and 21 U.S.C. 
§ 853, 18 U.S.C. § 981(a) (1) (C); 
28 u.s.c. § 2461(c); 18 u.s.c. 
§ 982; 31 u.s.c. § 5317: 
Forfeiture]· 

------
 

23 The Grand Jury charges: 

24 GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

25 At all times relevant to this Second Superseding 

Indictment: 26 

27 The Clinic and its Operations 

28 1. Co-Conspirators Mike Mikaelian ("Mikaelian"), and 
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1 Angelika Sanamian ("Angelika Sanamian"), and others operated a 

purported medical clinic that did business, at different times, 

at the following locations: 2120 West 8th Street, Los Angeles, 

California: 5250 Santa Monica Boulevard, Los Angeles, 

California; and 13746 Victory Boulevard #106, Van Nuys, 

California, each within the Central District of California · 

(hereinafter, collectively referred to as the "Clinic"). 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 2. The Clinic functioned as a "prescription mill" that 

generated prescriptions for OxyContin that the· Clinic's 

purported "patients" did not need and submitted claims to 

Medicare and Medi-Cal for services that were medically 

unnecessary, not ordered by a doctor. and/ or not performed. 

9 

10 

11 

.12 

13 3. The Clinic used patient recruiters, or."Cappers," who 

brought Medicare beneficiaries,. Medi-Cal· beneficiaries, and 

other "patients" .to __ the Clinic (the "recruited gatient_s" J in. 

exchange for cash or other inducements. 

14 

15 

16 

17 4. At thE!· CJ,inic, the recruited patients we:re routinely. 

issued a prescription for 90 pills of oxyContin 80mg strength, 18 

19 5. For many Medicare and Medi-Cal patients, the Clinic. 

also ordered unnecessary medical tests, such as nerve conduction 

velocity ("NCV") studies, electrocardiograms, ultrasounds, and 

spirometry (a type cif pulmonary test) . Some of the tests were 

performed; others were not. The Clinic further created 

falsified medical paperwork for Medicare and Medi-Cal patients· 

to provide a false appearance of legitimacy for the Clinic, its 

oxyContin prescriptions, and its billings to Medicare arid Medi-

Cal. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 6. Through a company called A & A·Billing Services 

2 
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1 ("A & A"), owned by defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN and operated by co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian, the Clinic billed· Medicare Part B 

and/or Medi-Cal for unnecessary office visits and tests, and for 

tests and procedures that were not ordered by a doctor and/or 

not performed as represented in the claims submitted to Medicare 

and Medi-Cal. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 7. After the OxyContin prescriptions were issued, 

"Runners" employed by the Clinic either took the recruited 

patients, or only the prescriptions and related documentation, 

to pharmacies, including.pharmacies owned and/or operated by 

defendants THEODORE CHANGKI YOON ("YOON") I PHIC LIM ("LIM"), 

also known as ("aka") "PK," PERRY TAN NGUYEN ("NGUYEN"), and co-

conspirators Theana Khou ("Khou") and Matthew Cho ("Cho"), 

which filled the prescriptions.• The Runners, rather. than the . 

pa~ients, took the oxycontin and delivered it to co-conspirator 

Mikaelian, who then sold it on the streets. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 8. · .. _);i'or patients who ha.d Medicare prescript:i,on_ drug .. 

(Medicare Part D), the .pharmacies that--dispensed the 

OxyContin either billed the patient's prescription drug plan 

("PDP") for the oxyContin prescriptions they filled or were paid 

in cash by the Runners and did not bill the PDP. 

18 coverage 

19 

20 

21 

22 9. The Clinic also generated OxyContin prescriptions in 

·the names of individuals who never visited the Clinic or had 

visited the Clinie once in the past. In these instances, using 

falsified patient authorization forms Runners took the 

prescriptions for these "pati.ents.11 to the pharmacies and paid 

the pharmacies in cash for the OxyContin, which they then 

delivered to co-conspirator Mikaelian for resale on the streets. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

3 
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1  10. During the Clinic's operation, it diverted more than 

13,000 bottles of OxyContin. Because the Clinic almost 

exclusively prescribed 90 quantity pill bottles, more than 1.1 

million OxyContin pills were diverted during the course of the 

conspiracy described herein. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 11. During this same time period, the Clinic and its 

.doctors fraudulently billed Medicare approximately $4.6 million 

for medical services and fraudulently billed Medi~Cal 

approximately $1.6 milli.on for such services. Medicare Part B 

paid approximately $473,595.23 on those claims and Medi-Cal paid 

approximately $546,551.00 on those clairris. In addition, 

Medicare Part D and Medicare PDPs paid approximately $2.7 

million.for OxyContin prescribed by the Clinic and its doctors. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 12. Defendants LIM and NGUYEN, together with co-

conspirator Khou, structured the deposit_s, of cash generated from 

the sale of oxycontin prescribed by the Clinic .and its doctors 

into their bank accounts by depositing t_he cash in amounts, o:f: .. 

$10,000 or less to evade-· bank reporting requirements for 

transactions over $10,000. 

. . 15 

16 

1} 

18 

19 

20 13. Co-conspirators Mikaelian and Angelika Sanamian used 

cash proceeds of the conspiracy to gamble at casinos, to 

purchase luxury goods, including automobiles and jewelry, and to 

buy OxyContin. 

21 

22 

23 

24 Defendants and Their Co-Conspirators 

25 14. Co-conspirator Mikaelian was the administrator of the 

Clinic and sold the OxyContin obtained via prescriptions issued 

at the Clinic on the streets. 

26 

27 

28 15. Co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian was the manager of 

4 
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1 

2 

3 

the Clinic; as well as the contact person and biller for 

Medicare and Medi-Cal claims at the Clinic. 

4 

5 

16. Defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN was a co-owner and CEO of A & 

A and was also a Ruimer for the Clinic. 

17. Co-conspirator Eleanor Santiago, MD ("Santiago") was a 

medical doctor, licensed to practice medicine in California and 

authorized to prescribe Schedule II narcotic drugs, who worked 

at the Clinic throughout its operation. Co-conspirator Santiago 

was the Medical Director of the Clinic. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 18. Co-conspirator Dr. H ("Dr. H") was a medical doctor, 

licensed to practice )tledicine in California and authorized to 

prescribe Schedule II narcotic drugs, who worked at the Clinic 

from in or about l_ate 2008 through in or about August 2010. 

11 

12 

13 

14 19. Defendant DAVID_ GARRISON ("GARRISON") was a 

phy13ician' s assistant, :Licensed: i1:i California, :who worked at the·

Clinic from approximately the summer of 2009 until the Clinic 

closed in o:r:. about ]\ugust. 2010_._ 

20. 

15  

16 

17 

18 Co-conspirator Julie. Shishalovsky _- ( "S,hishalovsky") 

-worked at the. Clinic as a medical assistant, receptionist, and_ 

office manager from the fall of 2008 until the Clinic closed in 

or about August 2010. 

19 

20 

21 

22 21. · Defendant ELZA BUDAGOVA ( "BUDAGOVA") was a medical 

assistant at the Clinic from in or about December 2008 until the 

Clinic closed in or about August 2010. While at the Clinic, 

defendant BUDAGOVA acted as an unlicensed Physician's Assistant 

and created medical files for patients purportedly seen by a 

doctor or a physician's assistant at the clinic. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 22. Co-Conspirator Lilit Mekteryan ("Mekteryan") was an 

5 
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1 

2 

ultrasound technician who worked at. the Clinic from 

approximately' January 2009 through approximately August 2009. 

3 23. Co-Conspirators Edgar Hovannisyan ( "Hovannisyan") , 

Keith Pullam, aka "Keith Pulman," aka "KMAC" ("Pullam"), and 

Miran Derderian ("Derderian") were Runners for the Clinic during 

the Clinic's operation. 

4 

5 

6 

7 24. Co-con.spirators David Smith, aka "Green Eyes" 

("Smith") , ·Pullam, and Rosa Garcia Suarez, aka "Maria" 

("Suarez"), were cappers who recruited patients for the Clinic 

during the Clinic's operation. 

8 

9 

10 

11 25. Defendant YOON was a pharmacist, licensed in 

California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule· II narCotic. 

drugs. Defendant YOON was the part-owner, officer, operator of, 

and/ or licensed pharmacist, at Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc.,_ including: 
. - . - - : 

(1) Gemmel Pharmacy of Cucamonga, located in Rancho Cucamonga, 

California; (2) Gemmel Pharmacy of Ontario, located in Ontario, 

California;. (3) Gemmel Phar_macy Rancho,_lo(!ated in Ranch() 

Cucamonga; Californ:La; (4) East L.A. Health Pharmacy ("Eq.st _ 

L.A."), located in Los Angeles, California; and (5) B&B Pharmacy_ 

("B&B"), locq.ted in Bellflower, California (collectively the 

"Gemmel Pharmacies") . .Defendant YOON also owned and operated 

Better Value Pharmacy ("Better Value"), located in West Covina 

California, and Better Care Pharmacy ("Better Care"), located in 

Van Nuys, California. Defendant YOON filled and caused to be 

filled prescriptions from the Clinic at the Gemmel Pharmacies, 

Better Value Pharmacy, and Better Care Pharmacy starting in or 

about July 2009. Defendant YOON controlled a bank account 

ending in 5701 at Nara Bank, a domestic financial institution 

·12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 _

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27· 

28 

6 
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1 ("Nara Account 1"), from which he withdrew proceeds derived from 

the sale of OxyContin and transferred them into a Gemmel 

Pharmacy, Inc. bank account ending in 5471 at Wilshire State 

Bank, a domestic financial institution ("Wilshire Account l"). 

2 

3 

4 

5 26. Defendant LIM was a pharmacist, licensed in California 

to lawfully dispense prescribed Sche.dule II narcotic drugs. 

Defendant LIM was the part-owner, officer, operator of, and/or 

licensed pharmacist at the Gemmel Pharmacies, from which 

defendant LIM filled and caused to be filled prescr.iptions from 

the Clinic, starting in or about JUly 2009. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 27. Defendant LIM and co-conspirator Khou were the owners 

tors of Huntington Pharmacy, located in San Marino, 

California. Defendant LIM filled and caused to be filled 

~rescriptions from the. Clinic at Buntington Pharmacy starting .in 

or about July 2009. Defendant. LIM and_co-conspi:("ato:i; Khou 

maintained control over accounts at Chase B<i.nk, a domestic 

.:J~inancial institution,. ending in 0_7_25 ( "ChaE!e.Accourit 1") ,_ 8~03 

("Chase Account 2"), and 2674. ("Chase_Account .. :3"), and at HSBC 

Bank, a domestic financial institution, ending.in 0993 ("HSBC 

Account 1"), into which defendant LIM and co-conspirator Khou 

deposited proceeds from the sale.of oxyContin. 

12 and opera

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 ,

19 

20 

21 

22 28. Co-conspirat.or Cho was a pharmacist, licensed in 

California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule II narcotic 

drugs. Co-conspirator Cho was the part-owner, officer, operator 

of, and/or licensed pharmacist at the Gemmel Pharmacies, from 

which Cho filled and caused to be filled prescriptions from the 

Clinic, starting in or about July 2009.· 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 29. Defendant NGUYEN· was a pharmacist, licensed in 

.7 
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1 

2 

California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule II narcotic 

drugs. Defendant NGUYEN owned and operated St .. Paul's Pharmacy 

("St. Paul's"), located in Huntington Park, California, from 

which defendant NGUYEN filled and caused to be filled 

prescriptions from the Clinic~ starting in or about December 

2008. Defendant NGUYEN controlled bank accounts at Bank of 

America, a domestic financial institution, ending in 1213 ("Bank 

of America Account 1") and·1025 ("Bank of America Account 2"), 

into which defendant NGUYEN deposited proceeds from the sale of 

oxycontin. 

30.

3 

4 

s 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11  Co-Conspirator. Tran was a pharmacist, licensed in 

California to lawfully dispense prescribed Schedule II narcotic 

drugs. Co-Conspirator Tran owned and operated Mission Pharmacy 

("Mission"), located in Panorama City.andFouritain.valley, 

California, from which_ Tran.filled and caused to be filled 

prescriptions from the Clinid,. starting _in or abol,lt August 2008. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 OxyContin and CURES Data .. 

18 31. Oxycontin was a· brand name· for the generic drug 

oxycodone, a Schedule II narcotic drug, ·and. was manufactured by 

Purdue Pharma L.P. ("Purdue") in Connecticut .. 

19 

20 

21 32. Purdue manufactured OxyContin in a controlled release 

pill form in lOmg, 15mg, 20mg, 30mg, 40mg, 60mg, 80mg, and 160mg 

doses. The 80mg pill was one of the strongest strength of 

OxyContin produced in prescription form for the relevant period. 

22 

23 

24 

2s 33. The dispensing Of all Schedule II narcotic drugs was 

monitored by law enforcement through the Controlled Substance 

Utilization Review & Evaluation System ("CURES"). Pharmacies 

dispensing Schedule.II narcotic drugs were required to self-

26 

27 

28 

8 
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1 

2 

report when such drugs were dispensed. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

34. Based on CURES data, from in or about August 2008 to 

in or about August 2010, purported medical professionals working 

at the Clinic prescribed OxyContin over 13,000 times, 

approximately 99% of which were for 80mg doses. 

35. During this same time period, co-conspirator Santiago 

prescribed oxyContin more than 6,151 reported times, and co-

conspirator Dr. H prescribed OxyContin more than 2,301 reported 

times. 

7 

8 

9 

10 36. Based on CURES dat~, from in or about August 2008 to 

·in or about August 2010, the Gemmel Pharmacies, Better Value.· 

Pharmacy, Better Care Pharmacy, Huntington Pharmacy, St. Paul's 

Pharmacy, and Mission Pharmacy (collectively,. the "Subject 

Pharmacies") dispensed more than 9,706 of the Clinic.doctors' 

reported prescriptions f()r oxyContin,~ or .approximately 74% of 

the total number of prescriptions issued from the Clinic. The 

Clinic prescriptions made up api;:>i:::oximat.ely 51% of the Subject 

Pharmacies'. 80mg OxyContin sales. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 The Medicare Program 

20 37. Medicare was a federal health.care benefit program, 

affecting commerce, that provided benefits to persons who were 

over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered by 

the Centers for Medidare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), a 

federal agency under the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services ("HHS") .. Individuals who received benefits under 

Medicare were referred to as Medicare "beneficiaries." 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26· 

27 Medicare Part B 

28 38. Medicare Part B covered, among other things, medically 

9 
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1 necessary physician services and medically necessary outpatient 

tests ordered by a physician. 2 

3 39. Health care providers·, including doctors and clinics, 

could receive direct reimbursement from Medicare by applying to 

Medicare and receiving a Medicare provider number. By signing 

the provider application, the doctor agreed to abide by Medicare 

rules and regulations, includi.ng the Anti-Kickback Statute (42 

u.s· .. c. § 1320a-7b(b)), which .Prohibits the knowing and willful 

payment of. remuneration for the referral of Medicare patients. 

4 

5 

5 

7 

a 
9 

10 40. To obtain payment for Part B services, an enrolled 

physician or clinic, using its Medicare provider number, would 

submit claims to Medicare, certifying that the information on 

the claim form was truthful and accurate and that the services 

;provided were reasonable and necessa.ry to the he.al th of the 

Medicare beneficiary. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 41. Medicare ·Part B generally paid 80% of the Medicare 

allowed amount for physician se:r:vices and outpatie!lt tests._ The 

remaining 20% was·a co-payment for: whicl;l the Medicare 

beneficiary or a ·secondary insurer was responsible. 

17 

18· 

19 

20 Medicare Part D 

21 42. Medicare Part D provided coverage for outpatient 

prescription drugs through qualified private insurance plans 

that receive reimbursement from Medicare. Beneficiaries 
' 

enrolled under Medicare Part B could obtain Part D benefits by 

enrolling with any one of many qualified PDPs. 

22 

23 
24 

25 

25 43. To obtain payment for prescription drugs provided to 

such Medicare beneficiaries, pharmacies would submit their 

claims for payment to the beneficiary's PDP. The beneficiary 

27 

28 

10· 
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1 .would be responsible for any deductible or co-payment required 

under his PDP. 2 

3 44. Medicare PDPs, including those offered by 

UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Health Net Life Insurance 

Company, Anthem Insurance Companies, and Unicare Life and Health 

Insurance Company, are heal th care benefit programs, af.fecting 

commerce, under which outpatient prescription drugs are provided 

to Medicare beneficiaries. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 45. Medicare PDPs commonly provided plan participants with 

identification cards for use in obtaining prescription drugs. 10 

11 The Medi-Cal Program 

12 46. Medi-Cal was a health care benefit program, affecting 

commerce, that provided reimbursement for medically necessary 

health care SE;irvices to indigE;int.persons in California .. F1,lnding 

for Medi-Cal was fihared betwee.n the federal gover_nment and the 

·state of California. 

13 

14 

. 15 

16 

17 47. T_he California Department of Health Care services 

("CAL-DHCS") administered the Medi-Cal program. CAL.-DHCS 

authorized.provider participation, determined beneficiary 

eligibility, issued Medi-Cal cards to beneficiaries, and 

promulgated regulations for the.administration of the program. 

18 

19 .

20 

21 

22 48. Individuals who qualified for Medi-Cal benefits were 

referred to as "beneficiaries." 23 

24 49. Medi-Cal reimbursed physicians and other health care 

providers for medically necessary treatment and services 

rendered to Medi-Cal beneficiaries. 

50.

25 

26 

27  Health care providers, including doctors and 

pharmacies, could receive direct reimbursement from Medi-Cal by 28 

11 
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1 

2  

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8  

applying to Medi-Cal and receiving a Medi-Cal provider number. 

51. To obtain payment for services, an enrolled provider, 

using its unique provider number, would submit claims to Medi-

Cal certifying that the information on the claim form was 

truthful and accurate and that the services provided were 

reasonable and neces.sary to the health of the Medi-Cal 

beneficiary. 

52. Medi-Cal· provided coverage for the cost of some 

prescription drugs, but Medi-Cal required preauthorization in 

order to pay for oxycodone. 

9 

10 

11 53. Medi-Cal provided coverage for.medically necessary 

ultrasound tests ordered by a physician, but it would not pay 

separately for both an upper extremity study (ultrasound) and a 

lower extremity study (ultrasound) performed on the same.day. 

12 

13 

14 

15 /// 

16 /// 

17 /// 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

12 
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1 COUNT ONE 

2 [21 u.s.c. § 846] 

3 54. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

paragraphs 1 through 53 of this Second Superseding Indictment, 

as though fully set forth herein. 

4 

5 

6 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

7 55, . Beginning in or about August 2008, and continuing 

until in or about August 2010, within the Central District of 

California and elsewhere, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, GARRISON, 

BUDAGOVA, YOON, LIM, and NGUYEN, along with co-conspirators 

Mikaelian, Angelika Sanamian, Santiago, Dr. H, Hovannisyan, 

Pullam, Derde~ian, Khou, Cho, Tran, and Smith, and others known 

and unknown to the Grand Jury, conspired and agreed with each 

other to knowingly. and intentionally distribute and divert .· 

oxycodone_: in t.he form. of,· .oxyContin, .. a Schedule II' narcot_ic drug; 

·outside the course of usual medical practice and for no 

legitimaj::e mec1ical pµrposE!,. in violation of 21 U\ S, C. 

§§ 841 (a) (1) and 84l(b) (1) (C). 

s 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15. 

16 

. 17 

18 

19 B. MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY WAS TO BE 

ACCOMPLISHED 20 

21 56. The objE>ct of the conspiracy was to be accomplished in 

substance as set forth in paragraphs 1-13 above and as follows: 22 

23  Co-conspirators Pullam, Suarez, Smith, and other 

Cappers, would recruit Medicare and.Medi-Cal beneficiaries and 

other individuals to go to the Clinic by promises of cash, free 

medical care, or medications, and other inducements. 

24 

25 

26 

27 b. Once the recruited patients were at the Clinic, 

co-conspirators Pullam, Suarez, Smith, and others would instruct 28 

13 
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1 the patients to sign intake forms provided at the Clinic and 

indicate that they suffered from various medical ailments. In 

many cases, the recruited patients would sign such forms .without 

completing them. 

2 

3 

4 

5 c. In some cases; the recruited patients would sign 

forms authorizing the Clinic to obtain prescribed medications 

from pharmacies for them and to do so without their presence. 

6 

7 

8 d. After a recruited Medicare or Medi-Cal patient 

signed the forms, defendant.a GARRISON and BUDAGOVA, together 

with co·-conspirators Santiago, Dr. H, or another individual 

working at the Clinic, would meet briefly with the patient and 

issue a prescription for 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg strength, 

.regardless of the patient's medical condition or history. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13. 

14 e .. Defendants GARRI$0N, BUDAVOGA, and co-

qonspirators ·Santiago and D.r. H would write medical not_el? -in the 

recruited patients' medical files indicating that the recruited 

patie_nts required OxyC().ntin for pai11; _ when in fact, . as these 

defendants then well knew, there was .no medical necessity 

justifying the use of OxyContin by these recruited patients. 

15. 

16 

1 7 

18 

19 

20 f. Defendants GARRISON, BUDAGOVA,. and co-

conspirators Santiago and Dr. H, would also write and/or sign 

prescriptions for Oxycontin for recruited patients who did not 

have Medicare or Medi-Cal coverage ("cash patients") and for 

patients who never actually visited the Clinic or had not 

visited the Clinic on the dates recorded in the medical records, 

in some cases pre-signing such prescriptions. In some 

instances, the cash patients were individuals whose identities 

had been stolen. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

14 
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1 g. Defendants GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, and co-

conspirators Santiago and Dr. H, would also write and/or sign 

medical notes indicating that cash patients had been examined at 

the Clinic and required OxyContin for medical treatment, when in 

fact, as defendants GARRISON, BUDAGO.VA, and co-conspirators 

Santiago and Dr. H, then well knew, the patients had not been 

seen at the Clinic on the date written in the medical notes 

and/or there was no medical basis supporting the prescriptions 

of oxycontin for these individuals. 

 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

s 

9 

10 h. On many occasions, one or more unknown co-

conspirators would fo_rge cash patients' signatures on forms 

authorizing the Clinic to obtain prescribed medications from 

pharmacies for them, without their presence, or forge 

documentation 
,-

indicating, 
 - ·, 

when 
-

had been seem by a - : 
.the patient 

. . -

licensed medical profi;issionaL These forms were maintained in 

the cash patient files at the Clinic. 

-.

11 · 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 i. Defendants ASHGT SANAMIAN, and co-co:qsp;Lr,,,tors 

Hovannisyan, Pullam, De_rderian, and other Runners, would take 

recruited patients.and signed authorization forms, along with 

the OxyContin prescriptions, to the Subject Pharmacies as well 

as other pharmacies. 

18 _

19 

20 

21 

22 j . Defendants YOON, LIM, NGUYEN, co-conspirators 

Cho, Tran, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, would 

dispense or cause to be dispensed the oxyContin to defendant 

ASHOT SANAMIAN, co~conspirators Hovannisyan, Derderian, and 

other Runners, or to the recruited patients, who would in turn 

give the OxyContin to the Runners. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 k. For cash patients, patients who had Medi-Cal 

15 
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1 

2 

only, and, in many instances, patients who had Me.dicare Part D 

coverage, defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN, co-conspirators Hovannisyan, 

Derderian, and other Runners would pay the Subject Pharmacies 

the retail price of the OxyContin, approximately $900-$1300 per 

prescription, in cash. For some Medicare Part D patients, 

pharmacists dispensed the OxyContin, including defendants YOON, 

LIM, NGUYEN, and co-conspirator Cho, and the Subject Pharmacies 

billed the patients' PDP. For those patients, defendant ASHOT 

SANAMIAN, co-conspirators Hovannisyar:i, ·Derderian, and the other 

Runners WOl.\ld either pay the co-payment amount or obtain the 

Oxycontin without charge, 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

s 

9 

10 

11 

12 l; Clinic employees, including co-conspirators 

Mikaelian and Angelika Sanamian were also prescribed OxyContin 

by the Clinic's do.ctors .and_ these prescriptions were fil_led by 

paying cash at the Subject Phar.macies. 

13 

14_ 

15 

16 m. However, to conceal the full extent of their 

OxyContin sales, the Subj_ect PhaJ;'macies -would. not always- bill 

the PDP and would not report a:ll_ the oxyContin prescriptions. 

issued by the Clinic to CURES. 

17 

18 

19 

20 n. Once the OxyContin was dispensed, def endar:its 

ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, co-conspirators Derderian, Hovannisyan, 

Pullam, and others known and unlmown to the Grand Jury would 

give the OxyContin to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

·21 

22 

23 

24 o. Co-conspirator Mikaelian and others known and 

unknown to the Grand Jury would then sell the oxyContin for 

between approximately $23 and $27 per pill. 

25 

26 

27 p. To dispose of cash proceeds generated from the 

sales of oxyContin without drawing scrutiny, defendant YOON 28 

16 



c se 2:11-cr-00922-FMO .Document 650 Filed 05/08/14 Page 17 of 53 Page ID #:60 6 

1 

2 

deposited and caused to be deposited proceeds from the sales of 

OxyContin into bank accounts in amounts less than $10,000 and, 

for at least one account then transferred the money into a 

Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. bank account at a different bank. 

3 

4 

5 q. To dispose of cash proceeds generated from the 

proceeds of OxyContin without drawing scrutiny, defendant LIM, 

co-conspirator Khou, and defendant NGUYEN, would structure 

·deposits of cash proceeds from the sale of OxyContin by 

regularly depositing the cash proceeds in amounts of $10,000 or 

less to evade bank reporting requirements. 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 r. co-conspirators Mikaelian and Angelika Sanamian 

would use proceeds from the sale of OxyContin to gamble at 

·casinos, to purchase automobiles and jewe1ry, and to buy more 

OxyContin. 

12 

13 

14 

15 .c. OVERT ACTS 

16 57. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish 

its object, defendants ASHO'I' SANAMIAN 1 GARRISON, BUDAGOVA, yOQN, 

LIM, and NGUYEN, along wit_h co-conspirators Mikael.ian 1 Angelika 

Sanamian, Santiago, Dr. H, Derderian, Hovannisyan, Pill lam, Cho, 

Khou, Tran, and Smith, together with others known and unknown to 

the Grand Jury, committed and willfully caused others to commit 

the following overt acts, among others, in the Central District 

of California and ·elsewhere:. 

17· 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 Co-Conspirator Mikaelian 

25 Overt Act No. 1: On or about November 2, 2009, co-

conspirator Mikaelian knowingly diverted and sold 17 bottles of 

oxyContin 80mg (approximately 1530 pills) to a confidential 

government informant ("CI-1"). 

26 

27 

28 

17 

l 
I 

.l 
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1 Overt Act No. 2: On or about December 10, 2009, co-

conspirator Mikaelian knowingly diverted and sold five bottles 

of OxyContin 80mg (approximately 450 pills) to CI-1. 

2 

3 

4 overt Act No. 3: On or about December 5, 2009, co-

conspirator Milcaelian inserted approximately $31, 3 00 in cash 

into slot machines at San Manuel Bingo & Casino in Highland, 

California. 

s 

6 

7 

8 .overt Act No. 4: On or about January 18, 20.10, co-

conspirator Mikaelian inserted approximately $33,400 in cash 

into slot machines at San Manuel Bingo & Casino in Highland, 

California. 

9 

10 

11 

12 overt Act No. 5: on or about February 10, 2010, co-

conspira,tor Mikaelian insert.ea approximately $24, 820 in cash 

into slot machines at Sap._ Manuel Bing() & Casino in Highland" 

California. 

13 

14 

15 

16 Co-Conspirator Angelika.Sanamian 

17 overt Act No. 6: On or about November 21L 2.008, co~ 

conspirator Angelilca Sanami~n obtained a Clinic prescription for 

oxyContin for herself and caused St. Paul 1 s Pharmacy to dispense 

90 pills of OxyContin 80 mg on that prescription. 

18 

19 · 

20 

21 overt Act No. 7: On or about April 4, 2009, co-conspirator 

Angelika Sanamian obtained a Clinic prescription for OxyContin 

for herself and caused Mission Pharmacy to dispense 90 pills of 

OxyContin 80 mg on that prescription. 

22 

23 

24 

25 Overt Act No. 8: On or about February 10·, 2010, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian inserted approximately $11,000 in 

cash into slot machines at San Manuel Bingo & Casino in 

Highland, California. 

26 

27 

28 

18 



se 2:11-cr-00922-FMO Document650 Filed 05/08/14 Page 19 of 53 Page ID #:60 8 

1 Overt Act No. 9: On or about February 26, 2010, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian inserted approximately $50,540 in 

cash into slot machines at Wynn Las Vegas in Las Vegas, Nevada. 

2 

3 

4 DEFENDANT ASHOT SANAMIAN 

5 Overt Act No. 10: On or about June 16, 2009, defendant 

ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of oxyCoritin SOmg from Pacific 

Side Pharmacy, in Huntingto~ Beach, California, in the name of 

recruited patient A.D. 

6 

7. 

8 

9 overt Act No. 11: On or about June 1_6, 2009, defendant 

ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of OxyContin somg from Med 

Center Pharmacy, in Van Nuys, California, in the name. _of 

recruited patient D.A. 

10 

11 

12 

13 overt Act No. 12: On or about September_ is, 2 009, 

.defendant ASHOT SA,NAMIAN paid approxi111ately $1,290 to Cplonial 

Pharmacy for 90 .pills labelec1 OxyContin BOm~L in the name of 

recruited patient J.T. 

14 

15 

16 

17 overt: ___ Act No. 13_: on or abo11t September 18, 200_9,_ 

defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills_ labeled Oxy_Contin _ 

SOmg from Huntington Pharmacy in San Marino,_ California, in the 

name of recruited patient D.O. 

18 

19 

20 

21 Overt Act No. 14: On or about September 18, 2009, 

defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN obtained 90 pills of oxyContin aomg 

from Huntington Pharmacy, San Marino, California, in the name of 

recruited patient A.A. 

22 

23 

24 

25 Co-Conspirator Santiago 

26 Overt Act No. 15: On or about December 16, 2008, co-

conspirator Santiago issued a prescription for 90 pills of 

OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient R.H. 

2-7 

28 

19 
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1 overt Act No. 16: On or about March 26, 2009, co-· 

conspirator Santiago allowed a prescription for 90 pi1ls of 

OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient A.A. to be 

issued in co-conspirator Santiago's name and thereafter signed 

the patient's chart. 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 DEFENDANT GARRISON 

7 overt Act No. 17: ori or about March 3, 2009, defendant 

GARRISON wrote medical notes in co-c.onspirator Derderian' s 

medical chart and prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's 

prescription, 90.pills of.OxyContin 80mg in co-conspirator 

Derderian's name. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 overt Act No. 18: On or about March 26, 2009, defendant 

GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient A.A.'s medical 

chart a,nd prescribed,. undE)r co-::cons:i;>irator ,Santiago's. 

prescription, 90 p~lls of OxyContin 80mg in __ the name of 

recruited patient A.A. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 overt Act No. 19: on.~or_ about May J,8, .. 2009, defendant 

GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient R .. H. 's medical 

·chart and .prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's 

prescription, 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg in the name of 

recruited patient R.H,. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 overt Act No. 20: On or about August 3, 2009, defendant 

GARRISON wrote medical notes in recruited patient V.F.'s medical 

chart and prescribed, under co-conspirator Santiago's·· 

prescription, 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg in the name of 

recruited patient V.F. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 Overt Act No. 21: On or about January 13, 2010, defendant 

GARRISON saw recruited patient C.P. and prescribed, under a 28 

20 
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1 Clinic doctor's prescription, 90 pills of OxyContin BOmg in the 

name of recruited patient C.P. 2 

3 Co-Conspirator Dr. H 

4 overt Act No. 22: On or about April 16, 2009, co-

conspirator Dr. H issued a prescription of 90 pills of OxyContin 

BOmg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

5 

6 

7 Overt Act No. 23: On or about June 23, 2009, co-

conspirator Dr. H issued a prescription of 90 pills of OxyContin 

BOmg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

8 

9 

10 Overt Act No. 24: On or about July 14, 2009, co-

conspirator Dr. H issued a prescription of 90 pills of OxyContin 

somg· in the name of recruited patient G.G .. 

_11 

12 

13 Co-Conspirator Hovannisyan 

14 Overt Act No. 25: On or about September 28, 2009, co-

conspirator _Hovannisyan picked upOxyContin at Mission Pharmacy 

and delivered the oxyContin to co·-conspirator Mikaelian. 

15 

16 

17 Overt Act No. 26: on or about September 28,, 2009_,,_ . .co-

conspirator Hovannisyan_ pickedu:EJ OxyContin at_Avalon Pharmacy 

in. Wilmington, California, and delivered the OxyContin to co-

conspirator Mikaelian. 

·

18 

19 

20 

21 Overt Act No. 27: On or about October 26, 2009, co-

conspirator Hovannisyan picked up OxyContin dispensed in the 

names of recruited Clinic patients at Better Value Pharmacy, in 

West Covina, California, and delivered the OxyContin to co-

conspirator Mikaelian. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 Overt Act No. 28: On a date unknown, but between in and 

about September 2008, and in and about May 2009, co-Conspirator 

Hovannisyan accompanied recruited patients to a pharmacy in 

27 

28 

21 
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1 order to obtain OxyContin. 

2 

3 Co-Conspirator Derderian 

4 overt Act No. 29: on a date unknown, but between in or 

about September 2008, and in or about May 2009, co-conspirator 

Derderian accompanied recruited patients to a pharmacy in order 

to obtain oxyContin. 

5 

6 

7 

8 Co-Conspirator Pullam 

9 Overt Act No. 30: On or about December 8, 2008, co-

conspirator Pullam obtained a prescription in his own name for 

90 pills of OxyContin 80mg from cocconspirator Santiago. 

10 

11 

12 Overt Act No. 31: On or about January 7, 2009, co-

conspirator Pullam obtained a prescription in his own name ,for 

90 pills of OxyContin 80mg. strength from co~conspirator. 

Santiago. 

13 .

14 

15 

16 overt Act No.· 32: On or about January 13, 2010, co-

conspirator Pullam paid recruited patient C.J;>. $300 for 90 pills.

of oxyContin 8 omg. 

17  

18 

19 Co-Conspirator Smith 

20 Overt Act No. 33: On or about January 13, 2010, co-

conspirator Smith offered t9 pay recruited patient C.P. $500 to 

obtain a prescription for oxyContin using patient C.P.'s 

Medicare Part D coverage. 

21 

22 

23 

24 overt Act No. 34: On or about January 13, 2010, co-

conspirator Smith wrote "back pain" on recruited patient C.P.'s 

medical intake form at the Clinic. 

25 

26 

27 overt Act No. 35: On or about June 18, 2009, co-

conspirator Smith offered to pay recruited patient E.D. $30 to 28 

22 
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1 go to the Clinic and receive a prescription for OxyContin. 

2 Overt Act No. 36: On or about December 16, 2008, co-

conspirator Smith offered to pay recruited patient R.H. between 

$50 and $100 to go to the Clinic and receive a prescription for 

OxyContin. 

3 

4 

5 

6 DEFENDANT BUDAGOVA 

7 overt Act Nos. 37-41: On or about July 6, 2009, August 5, 

2009, September 1, 2009, September 29, 2009, and October 19, 

2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in 

recruited patient L.H.'s medical chart. 

s 

9 

10 

11 Overt Act Nos. 42-43: ·On or about April 6, 2009, and 

August 20, 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information 

in rec.rui ted patient R.H. 's medical chart. 

12 

13 

14 Overt Act Nos. 44-46: On or about Juµe 1~, 2009, .J'uly 27, 

2009, and August 24, 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated 

information in recruited patient G.M.'s medical chart. 

lfr 

16 

17 Overt Act Nos. 47-48: On or about September :L4, .2009, anO. 

October 13, 2009, defendant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated 

.information in recruited patient E.D.'s medical chart. 

18 

19 

20 DEFENDANT YOON 

21 Overt Act No. 49: On or about June 28, 2009, defendant 

YOON dispensed or .caused to be dispensed 90 pills of oxyContin 

80mg in the name of recruited patient G.G. 

22 

23 

24 overt Act No. 50: Between on or about June 30, 2009, and 

on or about October 19, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or caused 

to be dispensed five bottles. of .90 pills each of oxyContin BOmg 

to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

25 

26 

27 

28 Overt Act No. 51: Between on or about August 30, ·2009, and 

23 
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1 on or about September 17, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or 

caused to be dispensed three bottles of 90 pills each of 

OxyContin BOmg to co-conspirator Smith. 

2 

3 

4 overt Act No. 52: Between on or about September 18, 2009, 

and on or about December 23, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or 

caused to be dispensed four bottles of 90 pills each of 

OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient E.D. 

5 

6 

7 

8 overt Act No. 53: On or about November 11, 2009, defendant 

YOON knowingly dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills each 

of OxyContin 80mg to c'o-conspirator Mekteryan, 

9 

10 

11 Overt Act No. 54: On or about.November 12, 2009, defendant 

YOON dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills each of 

OxyContin 80mg to co-conspirator Hovannisyan. 

12 

13 

14 overt Act No .. 55: O_n or about September 14, 2009, 

defendant YOON wrote check number 10004 2ayable to Gemmel 

Pharmacy,· Inc. ·in the amount of $28, o·oo from Nara Account 1. 

15 '

16 

17 overt Act J>jo. 56: Qn or about September 14, 2009, _ 

defendant YOON deposited or causedto be deposited check number 

10004 payable to ·Gemme·l Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $28, 000 

from Nara Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1. 

18 

19 

20. 

21 overt Act No. 57: On or about September 22, 2009, 

defendant YOON wrote check number 10'001 payable to Gemmel 

Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $14,000 from Nara Account 1. 

22 

23 

24 overt Act No. 58: On or about September 22, 2009, defendant 

YOON deposited or caused to be deposited check number 10001 

payable to Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $14,000 from 

Nara Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1. 

25 

26 

27 

28 Overt Act No. 59: On or about October 22, 2009, defendant 

24 
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1 YOON wrote check number 10005 payable to Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. 

in the amount of $17,000 from Nara Account 1. 2 

3 Overt Act No. 60: · On or about October 23, 2009, defendant 

YOON deposited or caused to be deposited check number 10005 

payable to Gemmel Pharmacy, Inc. in the amount of $17,000 from 

Nara Account 1 into Wilshire Account 1. 

4 

s 

6 

7 Overt Act Nos. 61-62: On or about April 27, 2010, and 

August ·13, 201?, defendant YOON dispensed or caused to be 

dispensed two bottles of OxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited

patient A.G. 

8 

9  

10 

11· DEFENDANT LIM 

12 Overt Act Nos. 63-65: On or about July 17, 2009, August 

21, 2009, and September 18, 2009, defendant LIM dispensed or 

c.aused to be dispensed three bottles of 90 pills each of· 

oxyContin · somg in the. name o:E rec.ruite.d. paJ;:lent CLG. 

13 

14 

15 

16 Overt Act Nos. 66-67: On or about July 27, 2009, and 

September l!l., 2009, defendant. LIM. dispensed or caused to ··(· be. 

dispensed two b6tt.les of 90 pills each of. OxyContin 80mg l.ri· the

name of recruited patient A.A. 

17 

18  

19 

20 Overt Act Nos. 68-69: On or about July 28, 2009, and 

September 18, .2009, defendant LIM dispensed or caused to be 

dispensed two bottles of 90 pills each of OxyContin 80mg in the 

name of recruited patient D.O. 

21 

.22 

23 

24 Overt Act No. 70: On or about November 27, 2009, defendant 

LIM dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

80mg in the name of recruited patient D.P. 

25 

26 

27 overt Act No. 71: On or about April 16, 2010, defendant 

LIM dispensed or caused to be dispensed one bottle of 90 pills 28 

25 
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1 of oxyContin 80mg in the name of recruited patient K.A. 

2 

3 Co-Conspirator Khou 

4 overt Act No. 72: On or about August 5, 2009; co-

conspirator Khou made or caused three separate deposits of cash 

in the amounts $2,377, $8,000, and $8,040 into Chase Account 1. 

s 

6 

7 Overt Act No. 73: On or about August 6, 2009., co-

conspirator Khou made or caused three separate deposits of cash 

in the amounts of $2,000, $2,726, and $8,000 into Chase Account 

1. 

8 

9 

10 

11 Overt Act No. 74: ion or about Septembers, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou made or caused four separate deposits of cash 

in the amounts of $3,741 and $9,000 into Chase Account 1, $9,000 

into Chase Account 2, .a.nd, $7, 000 into Chase Account 3. 

12 

13 

14 

15 Overt Act No. 75: On or· about S_epternber .24, 200_9, .co-

conspirator Khou made or caused two separate deposits of cash in 

the amounts of. $9, ooo. into Cha_S!'l 1\Ccount 1 and $9, oo_o_ into Chase 

Account 2. 

16 

17 

18· 

19 overt Act No. 76: On or about September 2.S, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou d.eposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

amount of $9,000 into Chase Account 1. 

20. 

21 

22 Overt Act No. 77: On or about September 26, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou made or caused three separate cash deposits in 

the amounts of $4,000 and $4,320 into Chase Account 1 and $9,000 

into Chase Account 2. 

23 

24 

25 

26 overt Act No. 78: On or about October 13, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

27 

28 

26 
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1 ·Overt Act No. 79: On or about October 14, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the

amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

2  

3 

4 Overt Act No. 80: On or about October 15, 2009, co-

conspirator Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the 

amount of $9,000 into HSBC Account 1. 

s 

6 

7 overt Act No. 81: On or about October 16, 2009, co-

conspirato.r Khou deposited or caused to be deposited cash in the

amount of $9,800 into HSBC Account 1. 

s  

9 

10 Co-Conspirator Cho 

11 overt Act Nos. 82-86:. On or about July 15, 2009, August 

11, 2009, August 21, 2009, ·september 18, 2009, and November 18, 

2009·, co-conspirator Cho dispensed or caused to be dispensed 

five bottle,s of 90 pills each of oxycontin somg stJ;"ength to· .. 

recruited patient R.H. 

12 

13 

. 14 

15 _ 

16 overt Act Nos. 87-91: On or about July 6, 2009, August 6, 

.2009; Septeml:Jer_l, 2009, September 28, 2009, and.November 18, 

 2009, co-conspirator Cho dispern1ed or caused_ to. be dispensi=d .. 

five bottles of 90 pills eq.ch of OxyContin 80mg strength to 

recruited patient J.M. 

;17 

18 .

19 

20 

21 Overt Act Nos. 92-96: On or about July 10, 2009, August 6, 

2009, September 1, 2009, September 28, 2009, and November 18, 

2009, co"conspirator Cho dispensed or caused to be dispensed 

five bottles of 90 pills each of oxyContin somg to recruited 

patient T.M. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 Overt Act No. 97: On or about August 18, 2009, co-

conspirator Cho dispensed or caused to be dispensed one bottle 

of 90 pills each of OxyContin 80mg strength to recruited patient

27 

28  

27 
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1 

2 

3 

E.D. 

4 

DEFENDANT NGUYEN 

overt Act No. 98: On or about November 21, 2008, defendant 

NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of OxyContin 

80mg to co-conspirator Mikaelian. 

5 

6 

7 overt Act No. 99: On or about November 21, 2008, defendant 

NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pil·ls of OxyContin 

BOmg to co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian. 

8 

9 

10 Overt Act Nos. 100-104: On or about March 20, 20.09, April 

16, 2009, June 23, 2009,. July 16, 2009, and August 27,. 2009, 

defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed five 

bottles. of 90 pil.ls of oxyContin 80mg to recruited patient G. G. 

11 

12 

13 

14 Overt. Act No. 105: On or about January 28, 2009, 

defend~mt_ NGUYEN: ma,de or caµsed two. :;ieparl'lt<= deposits Of cash. .in 

the amount of $10,000 into Bank of America Account 1 and $10,000 

into _Bank o:L America A.ccount 2. 

15 

16 

17 

18 .overt Ac.t.NO· 106:. On or about August 19, 2009, defendant 

NGUYEN made or caused two separate deposits of cash in the 

amounts $9, ooo and $10, 000 into Bank of America Account. l · 

19 

20 

21 Co-Conspirator Tran 

22 overt Act No. 107: On or about December 4, 2008, co-

conspirator Tran dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of 

OxyContin BOmg to recruited patient B.H. 

23 

24 

25 overt Act Nos. 108-111: on or about March 26, 2009, May 

30, 2009, June 25, 2009, and July 17, 2009, co-conspirator Tran 

dispensed or caused to be dispensed four bottles of 90 pills 

each of OxyContin 80mg strength to co-conspirator Hovannisyan. 

26 

27 

28 

28 
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1 overt Act Nos. 112-114: On or about November 8, 2008, 

April 4, 2009, and July 2, 2009, co-conspirator Tran dispensed 

or caused to be dispensed three bottles of 90 pills each of 

OxyContin 80mg to co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian. 

2 

3 

4 

s Overt Act Nos. 115-116: On or about December 19, 2008 and 

April 6, 2009, ca-conspirator Tran dispensed or caused to be 

dispensed two bottles of 90 pills each of OxyContin BOmg to co-

conspirator Mikaelian. 

6 

7 

8 

9 Overt Act No. 117: on or about April 2, 2009, defendant 

TRAN dispensed or caused to be dispensed one bottle of 90 pills

of OxyCimtin 80mg to. co-conspirator Derderian. 

10  

11 

12 /// 

13 /// 

.14 // / 

15 

16 

17 

18' 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 
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1 COUNT TWO 

2 [18 u.s.c. § 1349] 

3 58. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

paragraphs 1 through 53, and Overt Acts Nos. 37 through 48 as 

set forth in paragraph 57 of this Second Superseding Indictment,

as though fully set forth herein. 

4 

5  

6 

7 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

8 59. Beginning i.n or about August 2008, and continuing 

until in or about February 2010, within the Central District of 

California and elsewhere, defendant BUDAGOVA; together with co-

conspirators Angelika Sanamian, Santiago., Shishalovsky, Suarez, 

Mekteryan, and Smith, and others kn0 wn and unknown to the Grand 

Jury, knowingly combined, conspired, and ·agreed to execute a 

scheme to .. defraud a health. care l;>enefit program,· namely Medicare 

Part B and Medi-Cal, in yiotation_of 18_U.S.C. ~ 1347. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECT THE. CONSPIRACY WAS TO BE B. 

ACCOMPLISHED 

OF 

17 

60. ' · The object of the. conspira.cy was carried out., and to 

be carried ciut, in substance, as set forth in paragraphs 1 

through 13. and 57 of this Second Superseding Indictment and as 

follows: 

18  

19 

20 

21 

22 a. Co-conspirator Angelika Sanamian would recruit or 

instruct others to recruit doctors, including co-conspirator 

Santiago, to work at the Clinic. 

23 

.24 

25 b. Co-conspirator Santiago and the other doctors 

would.submit provider applications to Medicare and Medi-Cal and 

obtain Medicare and/or Medi-Cal provider numbers that enabled 

the Clinic to submit claims in their names. 

26 

27 

28 

30 
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c. The provider applications would designate co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian as the contact person and A & A as 

the billing entity for co-conspirator Santiago and other Clinic 

doctors. 

d. Co-conspirator Santiago and others at the Clinic 

.would write orders for unnecessary medical tests and procedures 

for the recruited patients who were Medicare and Medi-Cal 

beneficiaries. 

· 6 

7 

8 

9 e. Unknown individuals at the Clinic would perform 

tests on recruited patients before any medical examination was 

conducted or.following a cursory examination.that did not 

provide a basis for performing the tests. 

10 

11 

12 

13 f. Co-conspirator Mekteryan would perform 

unnecessary ultrasound test13.on recruited patients" 14 
. - - - - -· . ' - - -. 

15 g. Defendant BUDAGOVA, and co-cpnspirators Angelika 

Sanamian, Me'kteryan and ·shishalovsky, would create· false 

clinical records to make it appear as if 1_egitimate and 

necessary medical se.rvices had been performed on the recruited 

patients. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 h. Co-coni3pirator Angelika Sanamian, through A & A, 

would submit false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medi-

Cal related to the recruited patients for medical services that 

were not medically necessary and/or not performed as represented 

in the claims, including: 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 i. Claims for off ice visits with physicians 

that either did not take place or were shorter and more 

superficial than represented in the claims; 

26 

27 

28 ii. Claims for NCVs, electrocardiograms, 

31 

1 
I 
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1 

2 
3 

ultrasounds, and other tests and procedures that were not in 

fact performed: 
iii. Claims for ultrasounds purportedly performed 

one or a few days apart, on dates when the beneficiary was not 

in fact at the Clinic to be tested. 

4 

5 

6 iv. Claims for tests and procedures that had 

not been ordered by a physician. 7 

8 i. Medicare Part B and Medi-Cal would pay some of 

the _false and fraudulent claims . 9 

10 c. OVERT ACTS. 

11 61. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish· 

its object, defendant BUDAGOVA, together with co-conspirators 

Angelika Sanamian, Santiago, Suarez, Mekteryan, and Shishalovsky 

and others known. and unknown to the. Grand,Jury, committed and.· 

willfully caused others to commit Overt Act Nos, 37 thro11g,h 48 

as set.forth in .paragraph.57 of this.Second Superseding 

Indictment!.. arid the following overt acts, am~ng otl;l,e;r;s, in the . 

Central District of California and elsewhere: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 ·

17 

18 

19 Recruited Patient B.H. 

20 Overt Act No. 118: On or about April 29, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

services allegedly provided to recruit<;ld patient B.H. on March 

5, 2009, specifically, a Level 3 (approximately 30 minute face-

to-face) office visit with co-conspirator Dr. H, a duplex scan, 

and venipuncture. 

21. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 Recruited Patient D.P. 

27 Overt Act No. 119: On or about June 25, 2009, co-

conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed recruited patient D.P.'s 28 

32 
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1 

2 

Medicare and Medi-Cal eligibility. 

Overt. Act No. 120: On or about July 7, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient D.P. on June 

25, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

Dr. H, a duplex scan ultrasound, an ECG, and an NCV. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 overt Act No. 121: on or before July 7_, 20.09, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient D.P. on June 

26, 2009, specifically, a duplex scan (lower) ultrasound test. 

8 

9 

10 

11 overt Act No. 122: On or about September 1, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medicare for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient D.P. on August 

27, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit, with co-conspirator 

Dr. H, an amplitude and latency s.tudy, and an NCV. 

12 

13 

14.· 

15 

16 Recruited Patient E.D. 

17 overt Act No. 123:. On or abou_t June 18, 2009,_ co-

.conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed recruited patient E.D.'S 

Medi-Cal eligibility. 

18 

19 

20 overt Act No. 124: On or before July. 13, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on June 

18, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

Santiago, an EKG, ultrasounds and a breathing capacity test. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 overt Act No. 125: On or before July 13, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on June 

19, 2009, including an NCV. 

26 

27 

28 

33 
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1 overt Act No. 126: On or before September 8, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika .Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on August 

14, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

Santiago, an EKG, and pulmonary function tests. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 Overt Act No. 127: On or about September 14, 2009, co-

conspirator Mekteryan created or altered an ultrasound test 

result for recruited patient E.D. 

7 

a 

9 Overt Act No. 128.: On or about September 14, 2009, 

def.,,ndant BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in recruited 

patient E.D.'s medical chart. 

10 

11 

12 overt Act No. 129·, On or before October 5, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly·. provided to . recruited. patient . E. D. on 

September 14, 2009, specifically; a Level 3 office 'visit with 

co-conspirator Santiago, and an extremity study (ultrasound) 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 Overt Act No. 130: on.()r before October 5, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services al.legedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on 

September 15, 2009, specifically an extremity study 

(ultrasound). 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 Overt Act No. 131: On or about October 13, 2009,, defendant 

BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in recruited patient 

E.D.'s medical chart. 

23 

24 

25 overt Act No. 132: On or before November 9, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient E.D. on October 

13, 2009, specifically an extremity study (ultrasound). 

26 

27 

28 

34 
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1 

2 

3 

Recruited Patient R.H. 

Overt Act No. 133: On or about January 8, 2009, co" 

conspirator Shishalovsky confirmed recruited patient R.H.'s 

Medi-Cal eligibility. 

4 

5 

6 Overt Act No. 134: On or before March 16, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on March 

3, 2009, including a Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

Santiago. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 Overt Act No. ·135: On or about April 6, 2009, co.-

conspirator Santiago approved the ordering of an NCV for 

recruited patient R.H., a Medi-Cal beneficiary. 

12 

13 

14 Overt Act Nb. 136: On or about April 6, 2009, defendant 

BUDAGOVAwrote fabricated information .in recruited patient 

R.H.'s medical chart. 

15 

16 

17 Overt Act No. 137:_0n ().r before April 27, 2_009, co-

conspirator_Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim. to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on April 

6, 2009, ' specifically, a Level 3 office visit with co-

conspirator Santiago, an NCV, and. ultrasound tests. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 Overt Act No. 138: On or before April 27, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanarnian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on April 

7, 2009, specifically a visceral vascular study. 

23 

24 

25 

26 Overt Act No. 139: On or about August 20, 2009, defendant 

BUDAGOVA wrote fabricated information in recruited patient 

R.H.'s medical chart. 

27 

28 

35 
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1 Overt Act No. 140: On or before September 8, 2009, c.o-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient R.H. on August 

20, 2009, specifically, a lower extremity study (ultrasound). 

2 

3 

4 

s Recruited Patient L.H. 

6 Overt Act No. 141: On or about June 9,. 2009, co-

conspirator Mekteryan created or altered an ultrasound test 

result for recruited patient L.H. 

7 

8 

9 Overt Act No. 142: On or before October 5, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika Sanamian submitted a claim to Medi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient L.H. on June 9, 

2009, including Level 3 office visit with co-conspirator 

Santiago, an EKG, and extremity study (ultrasound). 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 Overt Act No .. 143: .On or before October 5, 2009, co-

conspirator Angelika SanamiC1.n submitte_d_a claim _to l'Jedi-Cal for 

services allegedly provided to recruited patient _L.H. on June 

10, 2_009, specifically, an_extremity study (ultrasound). 

15 

16 

17 

18 Additional.Acts 

19 Overt Act No. 144: On or about August 19, ·2009, co-

conspirator Suarez promised a confidential government informant 

(hereinafter "CI2"); a Medi-Cal beneficiary, $30 to go to the 

Glinic for unnecessary medical care. 

20 

21 

22 

23 Overt Act No. 145: On or about September 29, 2009, co-

conspirator Suarez informed an undercover officer that co-

conspirator Suarez would pay the undercover officer $10 for each 

"patient" profile the undercover officer referred to the Clinic 

and $40 for the use of the undercover officer's Medi-Cal card. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 Overt Act No. 146: On or about May 8, 2009, co-conspirator 

36 
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1 Smith promised recruited patient R.B., a Medi-Cal beneficiary,

$25 to go to the Cl~nic. 

 

2 

3 Overt Act No. 147: On or about May 8, 2009, co-conspirator 

Smith instructed recruited patient R.B., a Medi-Cal beneficiary, 

to \\come back" to the Clinic another time for more money. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Ill 
Ill 
Ill 
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1 COUNT THREE 

2 [18 u.s.c. §§ 1349, 2] 

3 62. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges 

paragraphs 1 through 53, 56, and 60; Overt _Act Nos. 28, 29 and 

33, as set forth in· paragraph 57 of this Second Superseding 

Indictment, as though fully set forth herein. 

4 

5 

6 

7 A. OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

8 63. Beginning in or about August 2008 and continuing until 

in or about February 2010, witbin the Central District and 

elsewhere, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, and.NGUYEN, 

together w-i.th co-conspirators. Mikaelian, Hovannisyan, Pullam, 

Derderian, Cho, and Smith, and others known and unknown to the 

Grand Jury, combined, conspired, and agreed to execute a scheme 

to defraud a health care benefit p:i;-ogram, namely Medicar,e Part D 

and Part·D PDPs, 
-

__ .in violation qf·18 u.s.c. § 1347. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECT OF THE. CONSPIRACY WAS TO BE B. 

ACCOMPLISHED 1 7 - · 

18 64. The object of the conspiracy was. carried out, and was 

to be carried out, in substance, as -set forth in paragraphs 1 

through 1.3, 57, 60 and 61 of this Second Superseding Indictment, 

and as follows: 

19 

20 

21 

22 a. Defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN, and co-conspirators 

Hovannisyan, Pullam, Derderian, and Smith, and others known and 

unknown to the Grand Jury, would provide and cause recruited 

beneficiaries to provide information regarding their Medicare 

Part D coverage, such as PDP identification cards, to pharmacies 

filling their oxyContin prescriptions, including pharmacies 

owned and/or operated by defendants YOON, LIM, and NGUYEN and 

23 

.24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

38 
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1 

2 

co-conspirator Cho. 

b. The pharmacies, including the Gemmel Ph~rmacies, 

Better Value Pharmacy, Huntington Pharmacy, and St. Paul's 

Pharmacy, owned and/or operated by defendants YOON, LIM, and 

NGUYEN, and co-conspirator Cho would submit or cause to be 

submitted claims to the PDPs for the OxyContin they dispensed to

fill the prescriptions. 

3 

4 

5 

6  

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

c. The PDPs and Medicare Part D would· pay some of 

the claims submitted. 

C. OVERT ACTS 

65. ·In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish 

its object, defendants ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, NGUYEN, 

together with co-conspirators Mikaelian, Hovannisyan, Pullam, 

Derderian, Ch.a.and Smith, and. others known and unknown to the 

Grand Jury, committed and willfully caused othe;r-S to commit 

o,vert Act Nos. 28 and 29, 33, 35, and 36 as set forth in 

paragraphs_ 57. and 61, of thi13 .second Supenieding Indictment __ and 

the. following overt acts, among others, in_ the Central District 

of California and elsewhere: 

·15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 Overt Act No. 148: On an unknown date after August 2008, 

and before on or about May 6, 2009, co-conspirator Mikaelian 

paid B.H., a recruited Medicare/Medi-Cal patient, $400 in order 

to obtain a prescription for oxyContin. 

21 

22 

23 

24 Overt Act No. 149: On or about December 12, 2008, 

defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed from St. 

Paul's 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D 

beneficiary D.P. 

25 

26 

· 27 

28 Overt Act No. 150: On or about December 18, 2008, 

39 
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1 defendant NGUYEN dispensed or caused to be dispensed 90 pills of 

OxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D beneficiary B.H. 2 

3 Overt Act Nos. 151-153: On or about May 4, 2009, June 3, 

2009, and July 2, 2009, defendant YOON dispensed or caused to be 

dispensed from Better Value three bottles of 90 pills each of 

Oxycontin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D. beneficiary S.D. 

4 

5 

6 

7 overt Act No. 154: on or about July 2, 2009, defendant LIM 

dispensed 'or caused to be dispensed from Huntington Pharmacy 90 

pills·of OxyContin 80mg to recruited Medicare Part D beneficiary 

D.N. 

8 

9 

10 

11 Overt Act No. 155: On or about September 18, 2009, 

defendant ASHOT SANAMIAN provided Colonial Pharmacy, in Arcadia, 

California, with multiple PDP cards and other identifying 

 information belonging to recruited· patients, at the ~li11ic .. 

12 

13 

14 .

15 overt Act Nos. 156-157: on or about. October 29, 2009. and_ 

December 9, 2009, co-conspirator Cho.dispensed or caused to be 

dispensed from B&B Pharmacy 90 pills of OxyContin 80mg strength 

to Medicare Part D beneficiary L.J. 

16 

17 

18 

19 Overt Act No. 158: - on or about January 13, 2010, co-

conspirator Pullam paid recruited patient C.P. $7 to cover 

recruited patient C.P.'s Medicare Part D co-payment. 

20 

21 

22 /// 

23 /// 

24 /// 

25 

26 

27 

28 

40 
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1 COUNTS FOUR THROUGH NINE 

2 [31 u.s.c. §§ 5324 (a) (3), (d) (2); 18 U.S.C. § 2] 

3 66. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges paragraph 

1 through 53, 56, and Overt Act Nos. 63 through 81 of paragraph 

57 of this Second Superseding Indictment, as though fully set 

forth herein. 

4 

5 

6 

7 67. on or about the following dates, in Los Angeles 

County, within the C.entral District of California, and 

elsewhere, defendant LIM and co-conspirator Khou, each aiding 

and abetting the other, knowingly, and for the purpose of 

evading the reporting requirements of Section 5313(a)· of Title 

31, United States Code, and the regulations promulgated 

thereunder, structured, assisted in structuring, and caused to 

be structured, . th€l following transactions wit!l .Chase Bank, a. 
 _-. -·- -

domestic financial ins_titution, as :eart of a pattern of :llleg:al 

activity involving more than $100,000 in a 12-month period, and 

while violating another law of .the United states: .. . 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

..

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNT DATE TRANStiCTION 
FOUR 08/04/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $1, 662 and 

$9, 000 into Chase Account 1 · 
FIVE 08/05/2009 Cash deposits iri the amounts of $2,377, 

$8,000, and $8,040 into Chase Account 1 
SIX 08/06/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $2,000, 

$2,726, and $8,000 into Chase Account 1 
SEVEN 09/05/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $3, 741 and

$9,000 into Chase Account 1, $9,000 into 
Chase Account 2, and $7,000 into Chase 
Account 3 

EIGHT 09/24/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts .of $9,000 into 
Chase Account 1 and $9,000 into Chase 
Account 2 

NINE 09/26/2009 Cash deposits in the amounts of $4,000 and 
$4,320 into Chase Account 1 and $9,000 into 
Chase Account 2 

41 
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8 

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 

17 

18

19

20  

21 

22

23

24

25

26 

.27

1

28

COUNTS TEN THROUGH FOURTEEN

[31 U .S .C . §§ 5 3 2 4 ( a ) (3}, ( d ) ( 2 ) ;  18 U .S .C . § 2 ]

68 . The G rand  J u r y  h e re b y  r e p e a t s  a n d  r e - a l l e g e s  p a r a g r a p h  

1 th ro u g h  53, 56 , an d  O v e rt A ct N os. 98 th ro u g h  106 o f  p a r a g r a p h  

57 o f  t h i s  S eco n d  S u p e rs e d in g  I n d ic tm e n t ,  a s  th o u g h  f u l l y  s e t  

f o r t h  h e r e i n ,  '

69 . On o r  a b o u t  th e  fo l lo w in g  d a t e s ,  i n  Los A n g e les  ,

C oun ty , w i t h i n  t h e  C e n t r a l  D i s t r i c t  o f  C a l i f o r n i a , ' and

e ls e w h e r e ,  d e f e n d a n t  NGUYEN, a id e d  an d  a b e t t e d  by  o th e r s  known

an d  unknown to  t h e  G rand J u r y ,  k n o w in g ly , a n d  f o r  th e  p u rp o s e  o f

e v a d in g  th e  r e p o r t i n g  r e q u ire m e n ts  o f  S e c t io n  5 3 1 3 (a) o f  T i t l e

3 1 , U n ite d  S t a t e s  C ode, and  th e  r e g u l a t i o n s  p ro m u lg a te d  .

th e r e u n d e r ,  s t r u c t u r e d ,  a s s i s t e d  i n  s t r u c t u r i n g ,  and  c a u se d  to
> ;

b e  s t r u c t u r e d , ,  t h e  f o l l o w i n g - t r a n s a c t i o n s  w i th  B an k :o f A m erica ,

a d o m e s t ic  f i n a n c i a l  i n s t i t u t i o n ,  a s  p a r t  o f  a  p a t t e r n  o f  

i l l e g a l  a c t i v i t y  i n v o lv in g  m ore th a n  $ 1 0 0 ,0 0 0  i n  a  12-m onth  

p e r i o d ,  a n d - w h i le  v i o l a t i n g  a n o th e r  law  "of t h e  U n ite d  S t a t e s :

.

COUNT DATE TRANSACTION
TEN 0 1 /2 8 /2 0 0 9 C ash d e p o s i t s  i n  th e .  am ounts o f  $ 1 0 ,000  

i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A ccount. 1 an d  $.10,000 
i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A cco u n t 2

ELEVEN 0 6 /0 2 /2 0 0 9 C ash d e p o s i t s  i n  th e  am oun ts  o f  $ 1 0 ,0 0 0  
i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A cco u n t 1 and  $ 9 ,5 0 0  
i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A cco u n t 2

TWELVE 0 6 /0 3 /2 0 0 9 C ash d e p o s i t s  i n  t h e  am oun ts  o f  $ 9 ,0 0 0  an d  
$ 1 0 ,0 0 0  i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A ccoun t 1

THIRTEEN 0 7 /2 8 /2 0 0 9 C ash d e p o s i t s  i n  th e  am ounts o f  $ 1 0 ,0 0 0 , 
$ 1 0 ,0 0 0 , and  $ 4 ,5 5 0  i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  
A ccoun t 1 .

FOURTEEN 0 8 /1 9 /2 0 0 9 C ash d e p o s i t s  i n  t h e  am oun ts  o f  $ 9 ,0 0 0  an d  
$ 1 0 ,000  i n t o  Bank o f  A m erica  A ccoun t 1
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1 COUNTS FIFTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-TWO 
. 

2 [18 u.s.c. §§ 1957 (a), 2] 

3 70. The Grand Jury hereby repeats and re-alleges paragraph 

1 through 53, 56, and Overt Act Nos. 49 and 62 of paragraph 57 

of this Second Superseding Indictment, as though fully set forth 

herein .. 

4 

5 

6 

7 71. On or about the following·dates, in Los Angeles 

County, within the Central District of California, and .. 

elsewhere, defendant YOON, together with others known and 

unknown to the Grand Jury, knowi·ng that the funds involved 

represented the proceeds of some form of. unlawful activity, 

knowingly conducted, attempted to conduct, and caused others to 

conduct, the following monetary transactions in criminally 

der.i ved. property of a va:Lue greater than $10, oo.o, which 

_:eroperty, ·in fact,. _was der_ived from speci:f:iea unlawful activity, 

namely, the distribution and diversion of oxycodone in the form 

of o:icyContin, a Schedule.II narcotic drug, in.violation.of .Title. 

18, united States Code Sectiol1E! 841 (a). (1),. and 841 (b) (1) (C) : 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 
·. 

18 

19 
COUNT· DATE TRANSACTION 
FIFTEEN 09/14/2009 Withdrawal of $28,000 from Nara Account 1 

by means of Check. #10004 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc. 

SIXTEEN 09/22/2009 Withdrawal of $14,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10001 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc. 

SEVENTEEN 10/22/2009 Withdrawal of $17,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10005 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacy, Inc. 

EIGHTEEN 12/08/2009 Withdrawal of $13,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10010 payable to Gemmel 
Pharmacv, Inc, 

NINETEEN 01/06/2010 Withdrawal of $13,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10013 payable to 
Gemmel, Inc . 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 ' 

28 

.· 

. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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COUNT DATE 
TWENTY 01/21/2010 Withdrawal of $23,000 from Nara Account 1 

by me.ans of Check #10014 payable to Gemmel 
J?harmac , Inc. 

TWENTY-
ONE 

01/28/2010 Withdrawal of $17,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10015 payable to Gemmel 
J?harmac , Inc. 

TWENTY-
TWO 

02/12/2010 

TRANSACTION 

Withdrawal of $21,000 from Nara Account 1 
by means of Check #10016 payable to Gemmel 
J?harmac Inc. 

44 
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1 

2 

3 

4  

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION I 

[21 u.s.c. § 853] 

[Conspiracy to Distribute Controlled Substances] 

1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all of the 

allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Count 

one of the Second Superseding Indictment as though fully set 

forth in their entirety herein for the purpose· of alleging 

forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of Title 21, United States 

Co.de, Section 853. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 2. Each defendant convicted under Count One of this 

Second Superseding Indictment shall forfeit to the UnitE)d States 

the following property: 

11 

12 

13 a. All right, title, and interest in any and all 

property 14 

15 (1) constituting, or derived from, any proceeds 

obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of any such 

of.fense;. 

16 

17 

18 (2) any property used, or intended to b"' used, in any 

manner or part, to commit, or to facilitate the commission of 

any such offense; and 

19 

20 

21 b. A sum of money equal to the total value of the 

property described in paragraph 2.a. If more than one .defendant

is found guilty of Count One, each such defendant shall be 

jointly and severally liable for the entire amount ordered 

forfeited pursuant to that co

22  

23 

24 

25 unt. 

26 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

853(p), each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

the value of the total amount described in paragraph 2, if, as 

27 

28 

45 
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1 

2 

the result of any act or omission of said defendant, the 

property described in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof (a) 

cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has 

been transferred, sold to, or deposited with a third party; (c) 

has been placed.beyond the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has 

been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been 

commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

difficulty. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 111 

10 Ill 

11 Ill 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

I 
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1 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION II 

2 (18 u.s.c. § 98l(a) (1) (C); 28 u.s.c. § 2461(c); 21 u.s.c. § 8S3] 

3 [Conspiracy to Commit Healthcare Fraud] 

4 1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all of the 

allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

Two and Three of the Second Superseding Indictment above as 

though fully set forth in their· entirety herein for the purpose 

of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, 

united States Code, Section 981 (a) (1) (C); Title 28, United 

States Code, Section 246l_(c); ·and Title 21, United States Code, 

section 853. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 2. Defendants BUDAGOVA, ASHOT SANAMIAN, YOON, LIM, and 

NGUYEN, if convicted of any of the offenses charged in Counts 

Two or Three of the.Second Superseding Indictme_nt, shall forfeit 

to the United ,States tli_e following property: 

13 

14 

15 _ 

16 a. All right, title, and·interest in any and all 

property, real or personal, whi_ch _ consbitutes or is derived from 

proceeds traceable to such offenses;_ and 

17 

18 

19 .b. A sum of money equal to the total amount of 

proceeds derived from each such offense for which the defendant 

is convicted. If more than one defendant is found guilty of 

Count Three, each such defendant shall be jointly and severally 

liable for the entire amount"ordered forfeited pursuant to that 

count. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

_25 

26 

27 

28 

3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

853(p), as incorporated by Title 28, United States Code, Section 

245l(c), each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

the total value of the property described in paragraph 2 above, 

47 
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1 if, by any act or omission of.said defendant, the property 

described' in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof, (a) cannot be 

located upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has been 

transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; (c) 

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has 

been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been 

commingled with other property that cannot be divided without 

difficulty. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

? 

8 

9 Ill 
10 Ill 
11 Ill 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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FORFEITURE ALLEGAT!ON III 

(31 u.s.c. § 5317) 

[Structuring) 

1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-ali'eges all of the 

allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

Four through Fourteen of the Second Superseding Indictment above 

as though fully set forth in their entirety herein for the 

purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of 

Title 31, United States Code, Section 5317. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 2. Defendants LIM, KHOU, and NGUYEN, if convicted of any 

of the offenses charged in Counts Four through Four,teen of this 

Second Superseding Indictment, :::;hall forfeit to the United 

States the following property: 

11 

12 

13 

14 _a. All rig:tlt, _ title, and interest in_ any and_ all 

property involved in the offense committed in 'l,T_i_olatiop Qf Title

31, United States Code,·section5324(a) (3), for which the 

defendant is convicted, _and all property_ traceable to. such 

property,_ including the following:_ 

15  

16 

17 

18 

19 (1) all money or other property that was the 

subject of each transaction committed in violation of Title 31, 

United.States Code, Section 5324(a) (3); 

20 

21 

·22 (2) all property traceable to mo1,1ey or property 

described in paragraph 2.a. (1). 23 

24 b. A sum of money equal to the total amount of money 

invoived in the offense committed in violation of Title 31, 

united States Code, -Section 5324 (a) (3), for which each defendant 

is. convicted. If more than one defendant is found guilty of any 

Counts Four through Fourteen, each such defendant shall be 

25 

26 

27 

28 

49 
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1 

2 

3 

jointly and severally liable for the entire amount ordered 

forfeited pursuant to that count. 

3. 

4 

s 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 Ill 

16 Ill 
17 Ill 
18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

50 

Pursuant to .Title 21, United States Code, Section 

853(p), as.incorporated by Title 31, United States Code, Section· 

5317, each defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to 

the value of the total amount described in paragraph 2, if, as 

the result of any act or omission of said defendant, the 

property described in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof (a) 

cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has 

been transferred, sold to, or deposited with a third party; (c) 

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has 

been substantially diminished in value; or. ( e) has been 

commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

difficulty. 
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1 

2 

3 

4  

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION IV 

[18 u.s.c. § 982(a) (1)] 

[Money Laundering] 

1. The Grand Jury incorporates and re-alleges all of the 

allegations contained in the Introductory Allegations and Counts 

Fifteen through Twenty-Two of the Second.Superseding Indictment 

above as though fully set forth in their entirety herein for.the 

purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a) (1) .. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 2. Defendant YOON, if convicted of any of the offenses 

charged in Counts Fifteen through Twenty-:rwo of this Second 

Superseding Indictment, shall forfeit to the United States the 

following property: 

11 

12 

13 

14 a, All right, title,. and interest in any and all. 

property involved .in each offense committed in violation of 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957, or conspiracy to 

commit such offense, for which the defendant is convicted, and 

all property traceable to such property, including the 

following: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 (1) all money or other property that was the 

subject of each transaction committed in violati·on of Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 1957; 

21 

22 

23 (2) all commissions, fees, and other property 

constituting proceeds obtained as a result of those violations; 24 

25 (3) all property used in any manner or part to 

commit or to facilitate the commission of those violations; and 26 

27 (4) all property traceable to money or property 

described in this paragraph 2.a. (1) to 2.a. (3). 28· 

51 
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1  b. A sum of money equal to the total amount of money 

involved in each offense committed in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 1957, or conspiracy to commit such 

offense, for which a defendant is convicted. 

2 

3 

4 

5 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section 

982, eac.h defendant shall forfeit substitute property, up to the 

total value of the property describe.d in· paragraph 2 above, if, 

by any act or omission of said defendant, the.property described 

in paragraph 2, or any portion thereof, (a) cannot be located 

upon the exercise of due diligence; (b) has been transferred or 

sold to, or deposited with, a third party; (c) has been placed 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 

2 

beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has 

been commingled with other property that cannot be divided 

without difficulty. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A TRUE BILL 

JS/ 
Foreperson 

ANDRE BIROTTE JR. 

;~'5 A:: 1C CCorney 

13 ROBERT E. DUGDALE 
Assistant United States Attorney 
j:!hief, Criminal, .Oi vision 14 

15 RICHARD E. ROBiNSON 
Assrstant united States Attorney 
Chief, Major Frauds Section 16 

17 JILL T. FEENEY 
".zi.ssistant·United States Attorney 
.Deputy Chief, Major Frauds section 

, 

18 

19. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

LANA MORTON-OWENS 
GRANT B. GELBERG 
Assistant United States Attorneys 
Major Frauds Section 
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.· UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DJ:STRICT OF CALIFORNIA ; 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

· Plaintiff, 

v .. 

DAVID GARRISON .· 

·. Defendant. 

No, CR 1t-92~ (ll)-DDP-lf> 
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1- DEFENDANT Dll,YIP .GARRISON . 

2 COUNT ONE (Conspiracy to Dist+il;mte' Controlled Substances) 

3 

4 We, the jury in t:'he above-captioned c·ase, unanimously f~nd 

defendant· David Garrison: . 5 · 

. 6 

7 

8 

.' 9 

10 

· .. GUILTY .. • 

iJoT · G.UIL'rY 

11. of conspiracy to distribute controlled substapQes a!J charged in count

one of the Second Superseding Indictl)lent. 

 

12 
13 

14 

.15 

16 

lT 

18 
,Pl6!ase have the forRnPr<>pn sign and· date the form. 

19 

20 · ~·u!{EPEJ<SON OF THE: JURY 

21 

22 DATED: October 2014 ·at Los Angeles, California. . t.2--, 

23 

24 

25 

26 

2 'I 

28 

. ·,' 
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United States District Court 
Central District of California 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. 

Defendant DAVID JAMES GARRISON 

akas: none 

Docket No. CR 11-00922 (8) DDP (6) 

Social Security 
No. 

(Last 4 digits) 

J_ J_ J_ J_ 

JUDGMENT AND PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER 

In the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant appeared in person 

MONTH 

March 

DAY 

19 

YEAR 

2015 

COUNSEL ID Michael R. Belter, Panel. 
(Name of Counsel) 

PLEA I OGUIL TY, and the court being satisfied that there is a factual basis for
he plea. 

 D NOLO 
CONTENDERE OT GUILTY ~N

l_N_D_IN_G__F_ _.I 0~here being a finding/verdict GUILTY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of: I 
21 U.S.C. § 846: Conspiracy to Distribute Controlled Substances as charged in Count 1 of 
the Second Superseding Indictment. 

JUDGMENT
AND PROB/

COMM 
-=O~R=D=E~R__

 The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. Because no sufficient 
cause to the contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and 
convicted and ordered that: Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the 
defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of: 

 

, 

Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant, 
David James Garrison, is hereby committed on Count 1 of the Second Superseding Indictment to the 
custody of the Bureau of Prisons for a term of 120 months and which shall run concurrent to the defendant's 
sentence currently, being served, in connection with United States District Court, Central District of 
California Docket No. CR 08-01084 (A) CBM. 

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of 
three years under the following terms and conditions. This term of supervised release shall run concurrent 
to the defendant's term of supervised release in connection with United States District Court, Central District 
of California Docket No. CR 08-01084 (A) CBM. 

1. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the United States Probation Office and 
General Order 05-02. 

2. The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled substance. The defendant shall 
submit to one drug test within 15 days of release from imprisonment and at least two periodic drug tests 
thereafter, not to exceed eight tests per month, as directed by the Probation Officer. 

3. During the period of community supervision, the defendant shall pay the special assessment in 
accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining to such payment. 

CR-104 (03-11) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT' ORDER Page 1 of 5 
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USA vs. DAVID JAMES GARRISON CR 11-00922 (B) DDP (6) 

4. The defendant shall not be employed in any position that requires licensing and/or certification by any 
local, state, or federal agency without the prior written approval of the Probation Officer. 

5. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of a DNA sample from the defendant. 

The Bureau of Prisons shall evaluate the defendant for participation in the 500-hour RDAP drug 
program. 

FINE: Pursuant to Section 5E1 .2 (e) of the Guidelines, all fines are waived as it is found that the defendant 
does not have the ability to pay a fine. 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special 
assessment of $100, which is due immediately. Any unpaid balance shall be due during the 
period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter, and pursuant to the 
Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

SENTENCING FACTORS: The sentence is based upon the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553, including 
the applicable sentencing range set forth in the guidelines. 

The Court RECOMMENDS a BOP facility as close to the Southern California vicinity as possible. 

In addition to the special conditions of supervision impo·sed above, it is hereby ordered that the Standard Conditions of Probation and 
Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of supervision, reduce or extend the period of 
supervision, and at any time during the supervision period or within the maximum period pennitted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke 
supervision for a violation occurring during the supe1vision period. 

March 19, 2015 
Date United States District Judge 

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S. Marshal or other qualified officer. 

CR-104 (03-11) 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

March 19, 2015 
Filed Date 

By John A. Chambers 
Deputy Clerk 

JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 2of 5 



Case 2:11-cr-00922-FMO Document 993 Filed 03/19/15 Page 3 of 5 Page ID #:9160 
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The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below). 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuant to this judgment: 

1. The defendant shall not commit another Federal, state or local crime; 
2. the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without lhe written 

permission of the court or probation officer; 
3. the defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the 

court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete 
written report within the first five days of each month; 

4. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation 
officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer; 

5. the defendant shall support his or her dependents and 1neet other 
family responsibilities; 

6. the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless 
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other 
acceptable reasons; 

7. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least 10 days prior 
to any change in residence or employ1nent; 

8. the defendant shall refrain fro1n excessive use of alcohol and shall not 
purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any narcotic or other 
controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, 
except as prescribed by a physician; 

9. the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances 
are illegally sold, used, distributed or administered; 

10. the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal 
activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted of a felony 
unless granted pennission to do so by the probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall pennit a probation officer to visit hhn or her at any 
time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation of any 
contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 

12. the defendant shall notify the probation officer within 72 hours of 
being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer; 

13. the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer 
or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the pennission 
of the court; 

14. as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third 
parties of risks that n1ay be occasioned by the d_efendant's crhninal 
record or personal history or characteristics, and shall pennit the 
probation officer to make such notifications and to confonn the 
defendant's co1npliance with such notification require1nent; 

15. the defendant shall, upon release from any period of custody, report 
to the probation officer within 72 hours; 

16. and, for felony cases only: not possess a firearm, destructive device, 
or any other dangerous weapon. 

D The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth below). 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF FINANCIAL SANCTIONS 

The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the court waives interest or unless the fine or 
restitution is paid in full before the fifteenth (15"') day after the date oflhe judgment pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(£)(1). Payments may be subject 
to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). Interest and penalties pertaining to restitution , however, are not 
applicable for offenses completed prior to April 24, 1996. 

If all Or any portion of a fine or restitution ordered remains unpaid after the termination of supervision, the defendant shall pay the 
balance as directed by the United States Attorney's Office. 18 U.S.C. §3613. 

The defendant shall notify the United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant's mailing address or 
residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments arc paid in full. 18 U.S.C. §3612(b)(l)(F). 

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United States Attorney of any material change in the 
defendant's economic circumstances that might affect the defendant's ability to pay a fine or restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). The 
Court may also accept such notification from the government or the victim, and may, on its oW-n motion or that of a party or the victim, adjust 
the manner of payment of a fine or restitution-pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18 U.S.C. 
§3563(a)(7). 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: 

CR-104 (03-11) 

1. Special asscssmenls pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013; 
2. Restitution, in this sequence: 

Private victims (individual and corporate), 
Providers of compensation to private victims, 
The United States as victim; 

3. fine; 
4. Community restitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(c); and 
5. Other penalties and costs . 

.JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page3of 5 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

As directed by the Probation Officer, the defendant shall provide to the Probation Officer: (1) a signed release authorizing credit report 
inquiries; (2) federal and state income tax returns or a signed release authorizing their disclosure and (3) an accurate financial statement, with 
supporting documentation as to all assets, income and expenses of the defendant. In addition, the defendant shall not apply fo~ any loan or open 
any line of credit without prior approval of the Probation Officer. 

The defendant shall maintain one personal checking account. All of defendant's inco1ne, "1nonetary gains," or other pecuniary proceeds 
shall be deposited into this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. Records of all other bank accounts, including any 
business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon request. 

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or otherwise convey any asset with a fair market value in excess of $500 without 
approval of the Probation Officer until all financial obligations imposed by the Court have been satisfied in full. 

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions itnposed by this judgment. 

RETURN 

I have executed the within Judginent and Commitment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on to 
Defendant noted on appeal on 

Defendant released on 
Mandate issued on 
Defendanfs appeal detennined on 
Dcfcndanl delivered on to 

at 
the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and Commitment. 

United States Marshal 

Date 

By 

Deputy Marshal 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby attest and certify this date that the foregoing document is a full, lrue and correct copy of the original on file in my office, and in my 
legal custody. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 
By 

CR-104 (03-11) JUDGMENT & PROilATION/COMMYfMENT ORDER Page 4 of 5 
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Filed Date Deputy Clerk 

FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court may (1) revoke supervision, (2) extend the term of 
supe1vision, and/or (3) modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to 1ne. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of the1n. 

(Signed)----------------
Defendant Date 

U. S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness Date 

CR-104 (03-11) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page5 of 5 
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IHAY;.25 20ID 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF C 

February 2010 Grand Jury 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

EDWARD ASLANYAN, 
aka "Eduardo Aslanyan," 
aka ."Eduard Aslanyan," 
aka '' E:do, 11 

CAROLYN ANN VASQUEZ, 
aka nKat, 11 

ZURAMA CLAUDINA ESPANA, and, 
DAVID JAMES GARRISON, 

Defendants. 

). CR No. 08-1084(A)-CBM 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

[18 U.S.C. § 1349: Conspiracy 
to Commit Health Care Fraud; 
18 U.S.C. § 1347: Health Care 
Fraud; 18 U.S.C. § 2(b): 
Causing an Act to be Done; 18 
u.s.c. 1028A: Aggravated 
Identity Theft] 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~) 

The Grand Jury charges: 

COUNT ONE 

24 

[18 u.s.c. § 1349] 

25 

A. INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

At all times relevant to this Indictment: 

26 The Conspirators 

27 1.·· Defendants EDWARD ASLANYAN ("ASLANYAN"), also known as

("aka"). "Eduardo Aslanyan, 11 aka "Eduard Aslanyan," aka "Edo," 

owned, operated, and controlled a company known as Multiple 

 

28 
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1 Trading, Inc. ("Multiple Trading") , which purported to do 

bu~:i,ne_s13 j,J:!_J:,o~.A!lgelE)_f!_County .at 6308 Woodman Avenue, VanJluys, 

California, within the Central District of California. Defendant 

ASLANYAN used Multiple Trading to, among other things, own, 

operate, and control numerous fraudulent medical clinics, in and ·

around Los Angeles, California, that produced fraudulent 

prescriptions and documents relating to diagnostic and medical 

tests and durable medical equipment ("DME"), such as power 

wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, orthopedic and 

diabetic shoes, and orthotics. 

2 

3 

4 

5  

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 2. Two of the fraudulent medical clinics defendant 

ASLANYAN owned, operated, and controlled were located at 231 West 

Vernon Avenue, .suite 204, Los Angeles, California (the "West 

Vernon Clinic"); and 7220 Woodman Avenue, Suite 106, van Nuys, 

California (the "Woodman Clinic"), within the Central District of 

California. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 3. Defendant CAROLYN ANN VASQUEZ ("VASQUEZ"), aka "Kat," 

was the chief executive officer, secretary, director, and 

registered agent of Multiple Trading. Defendant VASQUEZ managed 

the fraudulent medical clinics owned by defendant ASLANYAN, and 

recruited and hired physicians, physician assistants, and others 

to staff the clinics. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22. 

23 4. Defendant ZURAMA CLAUDINA ESPANA ("ESPANA") was a 

physician assistant recruited and hired by defendant.VASQUEZ to 

work at the Woodman Clinic. 

24 

25 

26 5. Defendant DAVID JAMES GARRISON ("GARRISON") was a 

physician assistant who worked for defendants ASLANYAN and 

VASQUEZ at defendant ASLANYAN's fraudulent medical clinics. 

27 

28 

2 
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1 Defendant ASLANYAN also owned, operated, and controlled

h_is_QW!L_DMlt _ _inipply _companies, which he .and other co-conspirators __ 

used to submit false and fraudulent claims to the Medicare 

Program ("Medicare") for power wheelchairs, power wheelchair 

accessories, and other DME. Two of the many DME supply companies 

ASLANYAN owned, operated,.and controlled were Vila Medical 

Supply, Inc. ("Vila Medical") , which purported to do business at 

14545 Friar Street, Suite 112, Van Nuys, California; and Blanc 

Medical Supplies, Inc. ("Blanc Medical"), which purported to do 

business at 10983 Glenoaks Boulevard, Pacoima, California. 

6 .  . 

. ________ 2__ 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 7. Vi1a Medical was a Medicare provider with a Medicare 

provider number, and purported to provide, among other things, 

power wheelchairs and wheelchair accessories to individuals who 

qualified for Medicare benefits. 

12 

13 

14 

15 8. Blanc Medical was a Medicare provider with a Medicare 

provider number, and purported to provide, among other things, 

power wheelchairs and wheelcl;lair accessories to individuals who 

qualified for Medicare benefits .. · 

16 

17 

18 

19 9. A co-conspirator known to the Grand Jury ("CCl") 

assisted defendant ASLANYAN, defendant VASQUEZ, and others with 

operating and managing Multiple Trading, defendant ASLANYAN's 

fraudulent medical clinics, ·and defendant ASLANYAN' s DME supply 

companies. Along with defendant ASLANYAN and other co-

conspirators, CCl provided and sold the. fraudulent. prescriptions 

and documents produced at defendant ASLANYAN's fraudulent medical

clinics to the owners and operators of different DME supply 

companies, and assisted defendant ASLANYAN and others in using 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25  

26 

27 

28 

3 
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1 Vila Medical and Blanc Medical to submit false and fraudulent 

 c_L«im...s._J::o Me_c;Us:_ax_e_._ . ____ )L . _ . 

3 

4  

The Medicare Program 

10. Medicare was a federal health care benefit program, 

affecting commerce, that provided benefits to individuals who 

were over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered 

by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid services ("CMS"), a 

federal agency under the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services. 

5 

6 

1. 

8 

9 

10 11. Individuals who qualified for Medicare bene~its were 

referred to as Medicare "beneficiaries." Each beneficiary was 

given a unique health identification card number ("HICN"). 

11 

12 

13 12. Medicare was subdivided into several parts, including 

Medicare Part B, which covered physician's services and DME. 14 

15 13. DME supply companies, physicians, and other health care

providers that provided medical services that were reimbursed by 

Medicare were referred to as .Medicare "providers." In order to 

participate·in Medicare, providers were required to submit an 

application in which the provider agreed to comply· with all 

Medicare-related laws and regulations. If Medicare approved a 

provider's application, Medicare assigned the provider a Medicare

"provider number," whic.h was used for processing and payment of 

claims. 

 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 14. A health care provider with a Medicare provider number 

could submit claims to Medicare to obtain reimbursement for 

services rendered to beneficiaries. 

25 

26 

27 15. Most providers, including Vila Medical and Blanc 

Medical, submitted their claims electronically pursuant to an 28 

4 
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1 agreement they executed with Medicare in which the providers 

"1,g!:E.l§_g_J;J_i_<i,t__j:h§Y_"7E.l:t:E.l!"~EIPOnsible for all claims submitteC! _to 

Medicare by themselves, their employees, and their agents; that 

they would submit claims only on behalf of those Medicare 

beneficiaries who had given their written authorization to do so;

and that they would submit claims that were accurate, complete, 

and truthful. 

...£ 

3 

4 

5  

6 

7 

8 16. Medicare generally reimbursed a provider for DME only 

if the DME was prescribed by the beneficiary's physician, the DME 

was medically necessary to the treatment of the beneficiary's 

illness or injury, and the DME supplier provided the DME in 

accordance with Medicare regulations and guidelines, which 

governed whether a particular item or service would be reimbursed

by Medicare. 

9 

i 10 

11 

12 

13  

14 

15 17. CMS contracted with regional contractors to process and 

pay Medicare claims. The contractor that processed and paid 

Medicare DME claims in Southern California during the relevant 

time period was first CIGNA and, later, Noridian. 

16 

17 

18 

19 18. To bill Medicare for services rendered, a provider 

submitted a claim form (Form 1500) to CIGNA or Noridian. Claims 

submitted were required to be truthful, complete, and not 

misleading. In addition, when a claim was submitted, the 

provider certified that the services or supplies covered by the 

claim were medically necessary. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·25 19. A claim for Medicare reimbursement of DME was required 

to set forth, among other things, the beneficiary's name and 

HICN, the type of DME provided to the beneficiary, the date that 

the DME was provided, and the name and unique physician 

26 

27 

28 

5 
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1 identification number ("UPIN") of the physician who prescribed or

20.

 

3  Under the laws and regulations of the State of 

California, a physician assistant could provide only those 

medical services that the physician assistant was competent to 

perform; that' were consistent with the physician assistant's 

education, training, and experience; and that were delegated in 

writing by a "supervising.physician" in a "delegation of services

agreement" signed and dated by the physician assistant and the 

supervising physician. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8  

9 

10 

11 B. THE OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

12 21. Beginning in or about March 2007 and continuing 

through in or about September 2008, in Los Angeles County, within

the Central District of California, and elsewhere, defendants 

ASLANYAN; VASQUEZ, ESPANA, and GARRISON, together with others 

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly combined, 

·conspired, and agreed to commit health care fraud, in violation 

of Title .18, United States Code, Section 134 7. 

i 13  

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 c. THE MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

20 22. The object of the conspiracy was carried out, and to be

carried out, in substance, as follows: 

 

21 

22 a. Defendant ASLANYAN caused t.he filing of articles 

of incorporation for Multiple Trading with the State of 

California. 

23 

24 

25 b. ·On behalf of Multiple Trading, defendant VASQUEZ 

caused the filing of a statement of information with the State of 

California that listed herself as the chief executive officer, 

secretary, director, and registered agent of Multiple Trading. 

26 

27 

28 

6 
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C; Defendant VASQUEZ caused the filing of a 

:1:Jg1:_i_t:_;j,_Qll§_l;>_l!S_in§_§S 11;;1.J!\§._s_tatement with Los )\ngeleioi County to 

operate Multiple Trading under the fictitious name "Advanced 

Medical Services." 

d. Through Multiple Trading, defendants ASLANYAN and 

VASQUEZ, with the assistance of CCl and other co-conspirators, 

operated and managed.a series of fraudulent medical clinics in 

and around Los Angeles County, including, but not limited to, the 

West Vernon and Woodman Clinics. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 e. Defendant VASQUEZ recruited and hired physicians 

·to work at these clinics in order .for her" defendant ASLANYAN, 

and their co-conspirators to obtain and use the physicians' 

names, UPINs, and Medicare provider numbers. 

11 

12 

13 

14 f. Defendant VASQUEZ recruited one physician, L.L., 

for a position at the Woodman Clinic, but L.L. declined the 

position. Nevertheless, unbeknownst to L.L., defendant VASQUEZ 

caused L. L. 's name to be printed on a p·rescription pad, and 

caused his name, UPIN, and Medicare provider number to be used 

without L.L.'s permission. 

15. 

16 

1 7 

18 

19 

20 g. Defendant VASQUEZ recruited and hired defendant 

ESPANA and other physician assistants to work at the clinics. 

Defendant VASQUEZ hired defendant ESPANA and other physician 

assistants to both refer Medicare beneficiaries for diagnostic 

testing and produce fraudulent prescriptions and documents for 

power wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, and other DME 

the beneficiaries did not medically need. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 h. Defendants ASLANYAN and VASQUEZ instructed the 

physician assistants who worked at the west Vernon and Woodman 28 

7 
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1 Clinics, including defendant ESPANA, to produce fraudulent 

P.1'.'.§!§l_g_:i;).pt_ions __ Cl.D.Q. doquments for power wheelchairs, _wheelchair 

accessories, and other DME tor Medicare beneficiaries, even 

though the beneficiaries did not medically need the power 

wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, or other DME. 

------~-

3 

- 4 

5 

6 i. Individuals known as "marketers" recruited, 

Medicare beneficiaries to provide the marketers with their names 

and HICNs. The marketers provided this· information to co-

conspirators associated with the West Vernon and Woodman Clinics, 

and defendants ASLANYAN, VASQUEZ, ESPANA, and GARRISON then used 

this information to refer the beneficiaries for diagnostic 

testing or produce or cause the production of fraudulent 

prescriptions and documents relating to power wheelchairs, power 

wheelchair accessories, and other DME the beneficiaries did not 

medically need. 

7 

8 

. 9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 j . From in or about March 2007 to in or about May 

2008, defendant GARRISON worked at the West Vernon and Woodman 

Clinics, where he performed physical evaluations, referred 

Medicare beneficiaries for diagnostic testing, and produced 

fraudulent prescriptions and documents relating to power 

wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, and other DME the 

beneficiaries did not medically need. Defendant GARRISON 

performed these tasks by using the names and UPINs of L.L. and 

other physicians who did not supervise defendant GARRISON, had 

not entered into delegation of services agreements with defendant

GARRISON, and had not authorized defendant GARRISON to perform 

medical services or write prescriptions or documents using their 

names or UPINs. 

17 

18 

19 

.20 

21 

22 

23· 

24 

25  

26 

27 

28 

8 
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l  Defendant GARRISON also wrote prescriptions and 

.J:lo_c:uments_r_e_l_a_t_ing ___ t_o . .medicallycunnecessary power wheelchairs, 

power wheelchair accessories, and other DME for Medicare 

beneficiaries who never visited the West Vernon or Woodman 

Clinics or saw defendant GARRISON. 

k.

___ 2 

3 

4 

· 5 

6 1. From in or about late November 2007 to in or about

February 2008, defendant ESPANA_ performed physical evaluations, 

referred beneficiaries for diagnostic testing, and produced 

fraudulent prescriptions and documents relating to power 

wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, and other DME the 

beneficiaries did not need. Defendant ESPANA performed these 

tasks by using the names and·UPINs of L.L. and other physicians 

who did not supervise defendant ESPANA, had not entered into 

delegation of services agreements with defendant ESPANA, and had 

riot authorized defendant ESPANA to write prescriptions and 

documents using their names or UPINs. 

 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 m. In or about January 2008, defendant ESPANA 

recruited M.G., a physician, to serve as her supervising 

physician at the Woodman Clinic, and entered into a·delegation of 

services agreement with M.G. Defendant ESPANA used M.G.'s name 

and UPIN to perform physical evaluations, refer beneficiaries for

diagnostic testing, and produce fraudulent prescriptions and 

documents rel~ting to medically-unnecessary power wheelchairs, 

power wheelchair accessories, and-other DME even though M.G. did 

not in fact know about or authorize many of these tasks. 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 n. In addition to owning and operating fraudulent 

medical clinics, defendant ASLANYAN also owned, operated, and 27 

28 

9 



( ) 
\ ' 

() ' .' 
C se 2:08-cr-01084-CBM Document 193 , Filecl 05/25/10 Page 10of15 Page ID #:633 

1 controlled various DME supply companies, including Vila Medical 

 and __ Blanc_ Me.di.cal·-·----· --·-- 2 .

3 o. To conceal defendant ASLANYAN's ownership of Vila 

Medical, CCl submitted a Medicare application on behalf of 

defendant ASLANYAN and Vila Medical that listed CCl as Vila 

Medical's director, and thereby obtained a Medicare provider 

number. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 p; In or about April 2007, defendant ASLANYAN 

purchased Blanc Medical pursuant to a verbal agreement by which 

Blanc Medical's then-owner, G.D., remained the nominee owner of 

Blanc Medical, but transferred beneficial ownership to.defendant 

ASLANYAN. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 q. Defendant ASLANYAN, CCl, and other co-conspirators

provided or sold the fraudulent prescriptions and documents 

'relating to power wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, and 

other DME to Vila Medical, Blanc Medical, and other DME supply 

companies, some· of which defendant ASLANYAN owned, operated, and 

controlled, and others of which he did-not. The DME supply 

companies that defendant ASLANYAN did not own, operate, or 

control included, among others, Kimco Medial Supply, Inc. 

("Kimco"), K & K Medical Supply, Inc. ("K & K"), and Contempo 

Medical Equipment, Inc. ( "Contempo") . 

 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 r . The above-referenced DME supply companies, 

including Vila Medical, Blanc Medical, Kimco Medical, K & K, and 

Contempo, used the fraudulent prescriptions and documents they 

purchased from defendant ASLANYAN, CCl, and others to submit 

false and fraudulent claims to Medicare. 

. 24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

10 
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1  As part of the fraudulent scheme described above·, 

de.Len_dants .. AS_LANYAN_, VASQUEZ, ESPANA, and GARRISON, and others .. -

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, caused Vila Medical, Blanc 

Medical, and other DME supply companies to submit to Medicare 

approximately $18,906,104 of false and fraudulent Medicare 

claims, resulting in Medicare payments of approximately 

$11,186,918. 

2 

23.

· 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

11 
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1 

2 

3 

'. 

. COUNTS TWO THROUGH ELEVEN 

[18 u.s.c. §§ 1347, 2(b)] 

4 

A. INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

24. ~he Grand Jury incorporates by reference and re-alleges

paragraphs 1 through 20 of this First Superseding Indictment as 

though set forth in their entirety here. 

 

5 

6 

7 B. THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD 

8 · 25. Beginning in or about March 2007 and continuing through

in or about September )008, in Los Angeles County, within the 

Central District of California, and elsewhere, defendants 

ASLANYAN, VASQUEZ, ESPANA, and GARRISON, together. with CCl and 

others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly, willfully, 

and with • intent to defraud, executed, and attempted I to execute, a 

scheme and artifice: (a) to defraud a health care benefit 

program, namely Medicare,. as to material matters in connection 

with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, 

and services; and (b) to obtain money from Medicare by means of 

material false and fraudulent pretenses and representations and 

the concealment of material facts in connection with the delivery 

of and payment for health care benefits, it.ems, and services. 

 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15· 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 C. MEANS TO ACCOMPLISH THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD 

22 26. The scheme operated in substance as described in 

Paragraphs 22 and 23 of this First Superseding Indictment, which 

are hereby incorporated by reference as though.set forth in their

entirety here. 

.23 

24  

25 

26 II 

21 II 

28 

12 
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5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

.1.4

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

“
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D. THE! EXECUTION OF THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME .

2 7 . On o r  a b o u t  th e  d a t e s  s e t  f o r t h  b e lo w , w i t h i n  th e  

C e n t r a l  D i s t r i c t  o f  C a l i f o r n i a  and e l s e w h e r e ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n ts  

i d e n t i f i e d  b e lo w , f o r  th e  p u rp o s e  o f  e x e c u t in g  an d  a t t e m p t in g  t o  

e x e c u te  th e . f r a u d u l e n t  schem e d e s c r ib e d  a b o v e , k n o w in g ly  an d  

w i l l f u l l y  s u b m i t te d  a n d  c a u s e d  to  b e  s u b m i t te d  t o  M ed ic a re  th e  

f o l l o w i n g  f a l s e  a n d  f r a u d u l e n t  c la im s  f o r  p ay m en t: ■

COUNT DEFENDANT
• •; :■ •: • : ■ . ..'• ■ [•'.• i

' CLAlrf NUMBER ’ <! 1 D‘AT& ' 
SUBMITTED

'GOM^MÌf )' .

. 

SUBMITTED

v *

.... j1 ■ , , 1 ■
-:NA¥Ur E. .b>t

J « y w \ v  *; 

TWO ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ
GARRISON

1 0 7 2 4 8 8 2 9 1 8 0 0 0 0 0 9 /0 5 /0 7
(BLANC)

$ 5 ,6 7 5 /
$ 4 ,1 5 9

P o w er
w h e e l c h a i r
a n d
a c c e s s o r i e s  
f o r  A .C .

THREE ASLANYAN 
VASQUEZ 
ESPAÑA .

' 
1 0 7 3 5 2 8 1 4 9 1 6 0 0 0 1 2 /1 8 / 0 7

(CONTEMPO)
$ 5 ,9 4 0 /
$ 4 ,2 1 4

P o w er
w h e e l c h a i r
a n d
a c c e s s o r i e s  
f o r  L .F .

FOUR ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ
GARRISON

1 0 8 0 0 7 8 7 1 5 2 6 0 0 0 0 1 /0 7 / 0 8  
(K &  K)

$ 5 ,8 6 5 /
$ 4 ,1 0 6

P o w er
w h e e l c h a i r  
a n d  . 
a c c e s s o r i e s  
f o r  A .G .

FIVE ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ
GARRISON

1 0 8 0 0 7 8 1 8 1 8 3 0 0 0 1 / 0 7 / 0 8
(KIMCO)

$ 5 ,8 6 5 /
$ .4 ,1 0 6

P o w er
w h e e l c h a i r
a n d
a c c e s s o r i e s  
f o r  G .c .

S IX ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ
ESPAÑA

1 0 8 0 2 9 8 2 9 6 6 4 0 0 0 0 1 /2 9 /0 8
(BLANC)

$ 5 ,6 7 5 /
$ 4 ,1 5 9

P o w er
w h e e l c h a i r
a n d
a c c e s s o r i e s  
f o r  R .R .

SEVEN ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ--
ESPAÑA

-----
1 0 8 0 4 5 8 3 1 9 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 /1 4 /0 8  

- (DLAMC)-------- --
$ 5 ,3 7 5 /  
$ 3 ,9 9 5 -------

P o w er
w h e e l  e i r a i r  
a n d 1
a c c e s s o r i e s
f o r  H. B .

 

13
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1 

12 

13 

14 

1 5 ' 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

2 3 

24 

25 

"26" 

2 7 

28 

EIGHT ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ 
ESPANA 

 108045831941000 02/14/08 
(BLANC) 

$5,375/. 
$3,995 

Power 
w h e e l c h a i r 
and 
a c c e s s o r i e s 
f o r S.B. 

NINE ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ 
GARRISON 

 108112891413000 04/21/08 
(KIMCO) 

$5,865/ 
$4,136 

Power 
w h e e l c h a i r 
and 
a c c e s s o r i e s 
f o r M,A, 

TEN ASLANYAN
VASQUEZ 
GARRISON

 

 

108112891415000 04/21/08 
(KIMCO) 

$5,865/ 
$4,214 

Power 
w h e e l c h a i r 
and 
a c c e s s o r i e s 
f o r T.A, 

ELEVEN ASLANYAN 
VASQUEZ 
GARRISON 

108112891414000 04/21/08 
(KIMCO) 

$5,865/ 
$4,214 

Power 
w h e e l c h a i r 
and 
a c c e s s o r i e s 
f o r G.A. 
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1 COUNT TWELVE 

... 2 [18 U.S.C. §§ 1028A, 2(b}] 

3 28. The Grand Jury hereby realleges and incorporates by 

reference paragraphs 1 through 20, 22, and 23 of this First 

Superseding Indictment, as though set forth in their entirety 

here. 

4 

5 

6 

7 29. Between in or about November 2007 and in or about 

September 2008, in Los Angeles County, within the Central 

District of California, and elsewhere, defendants ASLANYAN, 

VASQUEZ, and GARRISON, together with others known and unknown. to 

the. Grand Jury, knowingly transferred, possessed, and us_ed, and 

caused to be transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful 

authority, a means of identification of another person, that is, 

L.L. •s name and.UPIN, during and in relation to the following 

felonies: Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud and Health Care 

Fraud, a felony violation of Title lS, United States Code, 

Sections 1349 and 1347, as charged in Count One, above. 
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A TRUE BILL 

 ANDRE BIROTTE JR. 
United States Attorney 21 

22 ~-{!~ 
23 CHRISTINE C. EWELL 

Assistant United States Attorney 
Chief, Criminal Division 24 

25 BEONG-SOO KIM 
Assis ant united tat 

27 CONSUELO S. WOODHEAD 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Deputy Chief, Major. Frauds Section 28 

JONATHAN T. BAUM 
Trial Attorney, Fraud Section 
United States Department of Justice 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

CENTRAL DISTRICT .OF CALIFORNI 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff,

vs 

DAVID JAMES GARRISON 

·Defendant.

.CASE NO: CR08-1084(A)CBM. 

J U R Y V E R 0 I C T 

We the Jury, in the above-entitled cause, find· the· defendant, 

DAVID .:tAMES GARRISON 

·~·--..S~tA~._i/_+~y-----~' as charged in count 1 of the First superseding 
(GUILTY OR NOT GUILTY) Indictment; 

as charged in Count ;;? of the First Superseding 
Indictment; 

3t.1.i/;;t · · . , as charged in Count 4 of the First Superseding 
(GUILTY ORNOT GUILTY) Indictment; 

.· . aw'f+y , as charged in Count 5 of the First. Superseding 
(GUILTY OR NOT GUILTY) Indictment; 

· gul/tf . , as charged in Count 9 of the First Superseding 
(GUILTY OR NOT GUILTY) ·Indictment. 

as 
(GUIL ~ilfl_ 

charged in Count 10 of the First Superseding 
ORNOT GUILTY)' Indictment. 

• filAI, /i-v . · , .. as charged in Courit 11 of the First Superseding 
· tGurw"if'y-Ofr=NoT-GU'.CiiTY~Ind:tutmern1~t-.---------~---~------

. · 3i.Av{+y . . , as charged in Count 12 of the First Superseding 
(GUILTY ORNOT GUILTY) Indictment. 

Dated this _J__ day of J1.<1"1l 1 2012, 
at Los Angeles, California 

Case 2·08-cr-01 084-CBM.--DocumenLJ133-EilecL06LOJ.L12_ __ ga_ge 1 of 1 E:!ageJD-#:467~--

r-~-:--1~~u~eo,--....,...7,........., 
CLEl!I<, U.S. DISTRICT °OOUAT ; 

I %t 

JUN I 2012 f! . 

"· ,, 
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) 
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) 
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United States District Court 
Central District of California 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. 

Defendant David James GatTison. 

akas: ----------

Docket No. CR08-01084-CBM 

Social Security No. 
(Last 4 digits) -----

• • • • 

.JUDGMICNT AND PROBA rION/CO~l~llTWiNT ORDER 

ln the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant appeared in person on this date. 
MONTH 

9 
DAY 
18 

YEAR 
12 

(Name of Counsel) 

PLEA I D GUILTY, and the cou1t being satisfied that there is a factual basis for the plea. D NOLO 
CONTENDERE 

D NOT 
GUILTY 

FINDING j . There being a fmdinglverdict of GUILTY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of: 
Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Frpud (18 TISC Section 1349, 13470, Health Care Fraud and Aiding and Abetting 
(18 USC section 1347, 18 USC Section 2(b)), Aggravated Identity Theft and Aiding and Abetting (18 USC Section 
1028A, 18 USC Section 2(b)). 

JUDGMENT
AND PROB/

COMM 
ORDER 

 The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. Because no sufficient cause io the 
contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and convicted and ordered that: 
Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant is hereby committed to the. 
custody of the Bnreau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of: 

 

IT rs ADJUDGED that the defendant, David James Garrison, is hereby committed on Counts 1,2,4,5,9, 10, 11, and 
12 of the First Superceding Indictment to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons for a total term of72 months. 
This term consists of 48 months on Counts 1,2,4,5,9,10 and 11, to be served concurrently with each other, and 
24 months on Count 12, to be served consecutively to the terms imposed on the other counts. Upon release 
from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of three years. This term 

. consists of three years on each of Counts 1,2,4,5,9,lO and 11, and one year on Count 12, all such te1ms to run 
concunently and under the following terms and conditions:( I )The defendant shall comply with the mies and 
regulations of the U.S. Probation Office, General Order 05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the tlU"ee 
special conditions delineated in General Order 01-05; (2) During the period of community supervision the 
defendant shall pay the special assessment and restitution in accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining 
to such payment; (3 )The defendant shall not be employed in any position that requires licensing and/or 
certification by any local, state or federal agency without prior approval of the Probation Officer; (4)The 
defendant shall cooperate in the collection of the DNA sample from the defendant; (5)The defendant shall 
apply all monies received from income tax refunds, lottery winnings, inheritance, judgments and any 
anticipated or unexpected financial gains to the outstanding court-ordered financial obligation. 

Defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $800 which is due immediately. Any unpaid 
balance shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter, and 
pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay restitution to Medicare, in the total amount of $24, 935.00 pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 3663A. 

rn-104 ro311 n JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 1 of4 
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USA vs. David James Garrison Docket No.: CR08-0 I 084-CBM 

Restitution shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quruter, and 
pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If any amount of the restitution 
. remains unpaid after release from custody, nominal monthly payments of at least 10% of defendants gross 
monthly income, but not less than $300, whichever is greater, during the period of supervised release. These 
payment shall begin 30 days after the commencement of supervision. Nominal restitution payments are 
ordered as the court finds that the defendant's economic circumstances do no allow for either immediate or 
future payment of the amount ordered. 

The defendant shall be held jointly and severally liable with co-defendant, Edward Aslanyan, Carolyn 
Vasquez, and Zurama Claudina Espana, for the amount of restitution ordered in this judgment. The victims' 
recovery is limited to the amount of their loss and the defendant's liability for restitution ceases if and when 
the victims receive full restitution. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 3612(f)(3)(A), interest on the restitution ordered is waived because the 
defendant does not have the ability to pay interest. Payments may be subject to penalties for default and 
delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 3612(g). 

The defendant shall comply with General Order No. 01-05. 

All fines are waived as it is fourid that the defendant does not have the ability to pay a fine in addition to 
restitution. 

. 
In addition to the special conditions of supervision imposed above, it is hereby ordered tl1at the Standard Conditions of Probation. and 
Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of supervision, reduce or extend the period of 
supervision, and at any time during the supervision period or within the maximum period permitted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke 
supervision for a violation occurring during the supervision period. 

. 

9 /1¥'!~01z., 
Date/ / U. S. District Judge/Magistrate Judge 

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S. Marshal or other qualified officer. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

Filed ate  

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below). 

ST AND ARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuant to this judgment: 

r.R-104 {0'\/l 1) .JllDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page2of4 
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1. The defendant sha11 not commit another Federal, state or 1ocal crhne; 
2. the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the written 

pennission of the court or probation officer; 
3. the detendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the 

cou11 or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete 
wt'itten report within the first fivo days of each month; 

4. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation 
officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer; 

5. the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other 
family responsibilities; 

6. the defendant shall work regularly at a lawfill occupation unless 
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other 
acceptable reasons; 

7. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least t 0 days prior 
to any change in residence or employment; 

8. the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and sha1l not 
purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any narcotic or other 
controlled substunce, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, 
except as prescribed by a physician; · 

9. the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances 
are illegally sold, used, distributed or administered; 

Docket No.: CR08-01084-CBM 

I 0. the defendant shatJ not associate with any persons engaged in criminal 
activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted of a felony 
unless granted pennission to do so by the probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall pennita probation officer to visit him or her at any 
time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation of any 
contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 

12. the defendant shal1 notify the probation officer within 72 hours of 
being an'ested or questioned by a law enforcement officer; 

13. the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an infonner 
or a special agent of a law enforcem~nt agei1cy_without thepennission 
of the court; 

14. as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third 
·parties of risks that tnay be occasioned by the defendant's criminal 
record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the 
probation officer to 1nake such notifications and to conform the 
defendant's compliance with such notification requirement; 

15. the defendant shall, upon release from any period of custody, report 
to the probation officer within 72 hours; . 

16. and, for fe1ony cases only: not possess a fireann, destructiye device,. 
or any other dangerous weapon. 

D The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth below). 

ST UUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAVMF.NT AND COIJ.ECTJON OF FINANCIAL SANCTIONS 

. The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the court waives interest or unless the fine or 
restitution is paid in full beforethefifteenth(l5") dayafterthedateofthejudgmentpursuantto 18 U.S.C. §3612(f)(l). Payments may be subject 
to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). Interest and penalties pertaining to restitution, however, are not 
applicable for offenses completed prior to April 24, 1996. · · 

If all or any portion of a fme or restitution ordered remains unpaid after the tennination o{supervision, the defendant shall pay the 
balance as directed by the United States Attorney's Office, 18 U.S.C. §3613. 

The defendant shall notify the United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant's mailing address or 
residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments are paid in full. 18 U.S.C. §3612(b)(l)(F). 

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United States Attorney of any material change in the 
defendant's economic circumstances that might affect the defendant's ability to pay a fine or restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). The 
Court may also accept such notification from the govermnent or the victim, and may, on its own motion or that of a party or the victim, adjust 
the manner of payment of a fine or restitution-pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18 U.S.C. 
§3563(a)(7). 

Payments shall be applied in the following order; 

r.R-104 101/11) 

I. Special assessments pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013; 
2. Restitution, in this sequence: 

Private victims (individual and corporate), 
Providers of compensation to private victims, 
The United States as victim; 

3. Fine; 
4. Connnunityrestitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(c); and 
5. Other penalties and costs. 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

As directed by the Probation Officer, the defendant shall provide to the Probation Officer: (I) a signed release authorizing credit report 
inquiries; (2) federal and state income tax returns or a signed release authorizing their disclosure; and (3) an accurate fmancial statement, with 
supporting documentation as to all assets, income and expenses of the defendant. In addition, the defendant shall not apply for any loan or open 
any line of credit without prior approval of the Probation Officer. 

The defendant shall maintain one personal checking account. All of defendant's income, "monetary gains," or other pecuniary proceeds 
shall be deposited into this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. Records of all other bank accounts, including any 
business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon request. 

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or otherwise convey any asset with a fair market value in excess of $500 without 
approval of the Probation.Officer until all financial obligations imposed by the Court have been satisfied in full. 

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions imposed by this judgment. 

.RETURN 

I have executed the within Judgment and Commitment as follows: 
Defendant delivered on to 
Defendant noted on appeal on 
Defendant released on 
Mandate issued on 
Defendant's appeal dete1mined on 
Defendant delivered on to 

at 
the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and Commitment. 

United States Marshal 

Date Deputy Marshal 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby attest and certify this date that the foregoing document is a full, true and correct copy of the odginal on file in my office, and in my · 
legal custody. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 
By 
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Filed Date Deputy Clerk 

FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court may (1) revoke supervision, (2) extend the term of 
supervision, and/or (3) modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to me. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of them. 

(Signed)-------'---------
Defendant Date 

U. S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness Date 

r.R-104 f01/1 l) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Pages of4 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
CONNIE BROUSSARD 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
STEVE DIEHL 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 235250 

California Department of Justice 
2550 Mariposa Mall, Room 5090 
Fresno, CA 93721 
Telephone: (559) 477-1626 
Facsimile: (559) 445-5106 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
PHYSICIAN ASSIST ANT BOARD 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

DAVID J. GARRISON, P.A. 
5423 Overdale Dr. 
Los Angeles, CA 90043 

Physician Assistant License No. PA-12521, 

Respondent. 

Case No. lE-2010-211035 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code, §11520] 

FINDINGS OF 
. 

FACT 

I. On or about March 15, 2013, Complainant Glenn L. Mitchell, Jr., in his official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Physician Assistant Board, Department of Consumer 

Affairs, filed Accusation No. lE-2010-211035 against DAVID J. GARRISON, P.A. 

(Respondent) before the Physician Assistant Board. A trne and c01Tect copy of the Accusation 

No. IE-2010-211035 is attached as Exhibit 1. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

2. On or about March 26, 1990, the Board 1 issued Physician Assistant License number 

PA-12521 to David J. Garrison, P.A. (Respondent). Pursuant to Family Code Section 17520, the 

Board issued a Temporary License to Respondent, which expired on or about June 21, 2011. 

Respondent has not complied with Family Code Section 17520, therefore the license was denied 

1 Prior to January 1, 2013, the Board was named the "Physician Assistant Committee of 
the Medical Board of California". 
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I 

2 

3 

as of the filing the Accusation. A true and correct copy of Respondent's Certificate ofLicensure 

setting forth Respondent's address of record and licensing history is attached as Exhibit 2. 

3. On or about March 15, 2013, Ian K. McGlone, an employee of the Complainant 

Agency, served by Certified Mail a copy of the Accusation No. IE-2010-211035, Statement to 

Respondent, Notice of Defense, Request for Discovery, and Government Code sections 11507.5, 

11507.6, and 11507.7 to Respondent's address ofrecord with the Board, which was 5423 

Overdale Drive, Los Angeles, California 90043. Also, since Board had knowledge that 

Respondent was in custody as a result of being convicted of conspiracy to commit healthcare 

fraud, among other criminal acts, and was in the custody at the Metropolitan Detention Center 

("MDC") in Los Angeles, the Board served a courtesy copy of the Accusation and accompanying 

documents on Respondent as follows: David J. Garrison, P.A., Inmate Number 61613-112, MDC 

Los Angeles, P.O. Box 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90053. 

4 

s 
6 

7 

8 

9 

Io 
11 

12 

13 4. On or about March 19, 2013, "S. Joiner" of the MDC signed the certified mail receipt 

card addressed to David J. Garrison, P.A., Inmate Number 61613-112, MDC Los Angeles, P.O. 

Box 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90053 indicating receipt of the aforementioned documents. A copy 

of the certified mail receipt card is attached as Exhibit 3. Thereafter, on or about March 30, 

2013, Deputy Attorney General Steve Diehl received correspondence from Respondent's attorney 

Michael S. Meza acknowledging that Respondent was in fact in receipt of the Accusation and 

accompanying documents. In that correspondence, Mr. Meza advised Mr. Diehl that Respondent 

will not be responding to the Accusation. A copy of Michael S. Meza's correspondence dated 

March 27, 2013, is attached as Exhibit 4. 

14 

15 

16 

l 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 5. The Statement lo Respondent informed him that he was required to file a Notice of 

Defense within 15 days after receipt of the Accusation. Respondent has failed to file a Notice of

Defense within 15 days after service upon him of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right 

to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. lE-2010-211035. 

23  

24 

25 

26 6. On or ahout December I, 2014, a courtesy copy of Notice of Default was served on 

Respondent by Certified Mail to both of the addresses set forth above. A copy of the Notice of 27 

28 
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6 
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9 

IO 

' 11 

12 
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14 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 
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Default, Proof of Service, certified mail receipt and letter dated December I, 2014 are attached 

collectively as Exhibit 5. 

7. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter oflaw under the provisions cif 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c). 

8. To date, neither Deputy Attorney General Steve Diehl nor the Board have received a 

Notice of Defense from Respondent. The Declaration of Deputy Attorney General Steve Diehl 

and Ian K. McGlone are attached as Exhibit 6 and 7, respectively. 

9. Government Code section 1I506 states, in pertinent part: 

"(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent files a 

notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all patis of the accusation 

not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of 

respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing." 

10. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent pat1: 

"(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the hearing, the 

agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions or upon other evidence 

and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to respondent." 

11. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds 

Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on 

Respondent's express admissions by way of default and the evidence before it, contained in 

Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 finds that the allegations in Accusation No. lE-2010-211035 

are true. 

12. On or about May 25, 2010, in the matter entitled United States of America v. Edward

Aslanyan, Carolyn Ann Vasquez, Zurama Claudina Espana, and David James Garrison, United 

States District Court for the Central District of California Case No. CR 08-1084(a), a grand jury 

returned an indictment charging Respondent as follows: Count I: conspiracy to commit health 

care fraud in violation of 18 USC section 1349; Counts 2, 4, 5, 9, 10, and 11: aiding/abetting 

health care fraud in violation of 18 USC sections 1347 and 2(b); and Count 12: aiding and 
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abetting aggravated identity thefl in violation of 18 USC section 1028A and 2(b). All of these 

charges are felonies. 2 

3 13. On or about June 1, 2012, on the eighth day of trial, a jury returned a verdict finding 

Respondent guilty as charged on all counts. 4 

5 14. On or about September 18, 2012,judgment of guilt was entered against Respondent 

as to all counts in which he was named: I, 2, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11, and 12. Respondent was committed

to the Bureau of Prisons for a term of 72 months. Upon release, he is to be placed on supervised 

release for a.term of three years. Respondent is not to be employed in any position that requires 

licensing and/or certification by any local, state, or federal agency without prior approval of his 

probation officer. Respondent is ordered to pay restitution to Medicare in the total amount of 

$24,935.00. Respondent is held jointly and severally liable for this amount with his co-

defendants. True and correct certified copies of the First Superseding Indictment entitled United 

States of America-v: Edward Asldnyan, Carolyn Ann Vasquez, Zurama Claudina Espana, and 

David James Garrison, United States District Court for the Central District of C<:tlifornia Case 

No. CR 08-1084(a) and Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order are attached collectively as 

Exhibit 8. 

6  

7 

8 

9 

1 O 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 15. On or about October 1, 2012, Respondent filed an Appeal with Ninth Circuit of 

Appeals, appealing his September 18, 2012, conviction. On July 22, 2014, the court affirmed 

Respondent's conviction which took effect on August 15, 2014. Certified copies of the 

Memorandum filed on July 22, 2014 and the Mandate filed August 15, 2014 are attached as 

Exhibit 9. 
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DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

I. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent DAVID J. GARRISON, P.A. has 

subjected his Physician Assistant License No. PA12521 to discipline. 

2. A copy of the Accusation and the related documents and Declaration of Service are 

attached. 

3. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 
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I 4. The Physician Assistant Board is authorized to revoke Respondent's Physician 

Assistant License based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation: 2 

3 a. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 3351- Verdict of Guilty

or Conviction of a Felony. 

 

4 

5 b. Violation of California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399.525-

Conviction of Crime involving fiscal dishonesty. 6 

7 c. Violation of Business and Professions Code sections 490 and 493 - Convicted 

of Crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or 

profession for which the license was issued. 

8 

9 

IO 

JI ORDER 

12 IT IS SO ORDERED that Physician Assistant License No. PA12521, heretofore issued to 

Respondent DAVID J. GARRISON, P.A., is revoked. 13 

14 Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a 

written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing ofgood cause, as defined in the statute. 

15 

16 

17 

18 This Decision shall become effective on May 2 2 , 2015 

19 It is so ORDERED April 22, 2015 
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BEFORE THE 
PHYSICIAN ASSIST ANT BOARD 

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

DAVID J. GARRISON, P.A. 
54 23 Overdal e Dr. 
Los Angeles, CA 90043 

Physician Assistant License No. PA-12521, 

Respondent.

Case No. IE-2010-211035 

ACCUSATION 

14 

15  

16 

17 Complainant alleges: 

18 PARTIES 

19 I. Glenn L. Mitchell, Jr. (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in his official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Physician Assistant Board (Board). 20 

21 2. On or about March 26, 1990, the Board1 issued Physician Assistant License number 

PA-12521 to David J. Garrison, P.A. (Respondent). Pursuant to Family Code Section 17520, the 

Board issued a Temporary License to Respondent, which expired on or about June 21, 2011. 

Respondent has not complied with Family Code Section 17520, therefore the license is denied as 

of the filing of this Accusation. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1 Prior to January 1, 2013, the Board was named the "Physician Assistant Committee of 
the Medical Board of California". 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following 

laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise 

indicated. 

4. Section 3531 of the Code states: 

"A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea ofnolo contendere made to a 

charge of a felony or of any offense which is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

or duties of the business or profession to which the license was issued is deemed to be a 

conviction within the meaning of this chapter. The board may order the license suspended or 

revoked, or shall decline to issue a license when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment 

of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made 

suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the provisions of 

Section 1203 .4 of the Penal Code allowing such person to withdraw his plea of guilty and to enter 

a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information

or indictment." 

 

5. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399.525, states: 

"For the purposes of the denial, suspension or revocation of a license or approval pursuant 

to division 1.5 (commencing with section 475) of the code, a crime or act shall be considered to 

be substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a person holding a license or 

approval under the Physician Assistant Practice Act if to a substantial degree it evidences present 

or potential unfitness of a person holding such a license or approval to perform the functions 

authorized by the license or approval in a manner consistent with the public health, safety or 

welfare. Such climes or acts shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 

II II 

"(h) Conviction of a clime involving fiscal dishonesty. 

II 11 

6. Section 490 of the Code states: 
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"(a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitted to take against a licensee, a 

board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a 

crime, if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business

or profession for which the license was issued. 

 

"(b) Notwithstanding any other provision oflaw, a board may exercise any authority to 

discipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent of the authority granted under 

subdivision (a) only ifthe crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties 

of the business or profession for which the licensee's license was issued. 

 

"(c) A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a 

conviction following a plea of no lo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to take 

following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or 

the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting probation is 

made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the 

provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code. 

 

"( d) The Legislature hereby finds and declares that the application of this section has been 

made unclear by the holding in Petropoulos v. Department of Real Estate (2006) 142 Cal.App.4th 

554, and that the holding in that case has placed a significant number of statutes and regulations 

in question, resulting in potential hann to the consumers of California from licensees who have 

been convicted of crimes. Therefore, the Legislature finds and declares that this section 

establishes an independent basis for a board to impose discipline upon a licensee, and that the 

amendments to this section made by Senate Bill 797 of the 2007 -08 Regular Session do not 

constitute a change to, but rather are declaratory of, existing law." 

 

7. Section 493 of the Code states: 

"Notwithstanding any other provision oflaw, in a proceeding conducted by a board within 

the department pursuant to law to deny an application for a license or to suspend or revoke a 

license or otherwise take disciplinary action against a person who holds a license, upon the 

ground that the applicant or the licensee has been convicted of a crime substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question, the record of conviction of the 
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crime shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that the conviction occurred, but only of that fact, 

and the board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime in 

order to fix the degree of discipline or to determine ifthe conviction is substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in question. 

"As used in this section, 'license' includes 'certificate,' 'permit,' 'authority,' and 

'registration."' 

8. Section 1300 of the Evidence Code states: 

"Evidence of a final judgment adjudging a person guilty of a crime punishable as a felony is 

not made inadmissible by the hearsay rule when offered in a civil action to prove any fact 

essential to the judgment whether or not the judgment was based on a plea of nolo contendere." 

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction of a Felony) 

9. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 3531 and 490, and 

California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1399 .525, subsection (h), in that he was 

convicted of multiple felonies substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a 

physician's assistant. The circumstances are as follows: 

10. 

14 

15 

16 

17 From in or about March 2007 to in or about May 2008, Respondent worked at clinics 

located at 231 West Vernon Avenue, Suite 204, Los Angeles, California (the "West Vernon 

Clinic"), as well as at 7220 Woodman Avenue, Suite 106, Van Nuys, California (the "Woodman 

Clinic"). Both of these clinics were owned, operated, and controlled by a company known as 

Multiple Trading, Inc. ("Mulitple Trading"). The owner and operator of Multiple Trading, 

Edward Aslanyan, also owned a variety of medical supply companies, including Vila Medical 

Supply Inc. ("Vila Medical"), and Blanc Medical Supplies, Inc. ("Blanc Medical"). 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 In the course of his employment, Respondent performed physical evaluations, referred 

Medicare beneficiaries for diagnostic testing, and produced fraudulent prescriptions and 

documents relating to power wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, arid other Durable 

Medical Equipment ("DME") the beneficiaries did not medically need. Respondent performed 

t11ese tasks by using the names and unique physician identification numbers ("UP!Ns") of 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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physicians who did not supervise Respondent, had not entered into delegation of services 

agreements with Respondent, and had not authorized Respondent to perform medical services or 

write prescriptions or documents using their names or UP!Ns. 

4 Respondent also wrote prescriptions and documents relating to medically-unnecessary 

power wheelchairs, power wheelchair accessories, and other DME for Medicare beneficiaries 

who neither never visited the West Vernon or Woodman clinics nor saw Respondent. 

5 

6 

7 As a result of the fraudulent activities described above, Respondent and his co-conspirators 

caused Vila Medical, Blanc Medical, and other DME supply companies to submit to Medicare 

approximately $18,906, 104 of false and fraudulent Medicare claims, resulting in Medicare 

payments of approximately $11, 186,918. 

8 

9 

1 O 

11 Specifically, Respondent, in collaboration with his co-conspirators, caused the following 

fraudulent claims to be submitted to Medicare: 12 

13 a. Claim Number 107248829180000, submitted September 5, 2007, for a power 

wheelchair and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,675, and the amount 

paid by Medicare was $4,159. 

14 

15 

16 b. Claim Number 108007871526000, submitted January 7, 2008, for a power wheelchair 

and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,865, and the amount paid by 

Medicare was $4, 106. 

17 

18 

19 c. Claim Number 10800781813000, submitted January 7, 2008, for a power wheelchair 

and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,865, and the amount paid by 

Medicare was $4, 106. 

20 

21 

22 d. Claim Number I 08112891413000, submitted April 21, 2008, for a power wheelchair 

and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,865, and the amount paid by 

Medicare was $4,136. 

23 

24 

25 e. Claim Number 108112891415000, submitted April 21, 2008, for a power wheelchair 

and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,865, and the amount paid by 

Medicare was $4,214. 

26 

27 

28 
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f. Claim Number 108112891414000, submitted April 21, 2008, for a power wheelchair 

and accessories. The claim amount submitted was $5,865, and the amount paid by 

Medicare was $4,214. 

4 11. On or about May 25, 2010, in the matter entitled United States of America v. Edward 

Aslanyan, Carolyn Ann Vasquez, Zurama Claudina Espana, and David James Garrison, United 

States District Court for the Central District of California Case No. CR 08-1084(a), a grand jury 

returned an indictment charging Respondent as follows: Count 1: conspiracy to commit health 

care fraud in violation of 18 USC section 1349; Counts 2, 4, 5, 9, 10, and 11: aiding/abetting 

health care fraud in violation of 18 USC s.ections 1347 and 2(b); and Count 12: aiding and 

abetting aggravated identity theft in violation of 18 USC section 1028A and 2(b ). All of these 

charges are felonies. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 O 

11 

12 12. On or about June l, 2012, on the eighth day of trial, a jury returned a verdict finding 

Respondent guilty as charged on all counts. 13 

14 13. On or about September 18, 2012, judgment of guilty was entered against Respondent 

as to all counts in which he was named: 1, 2, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11, and 12. Respondent was committed 

to the Bureau of P1isons for a term of 72 months. Upon release, he is to be placed on supervised 

release for a term of three years. Respondent is not to be employed in any position that requires 

licensing and/or certification by any local, state, or federal agency without prior approval of his 

probation officer. Respondent is ordered to pay restitution to Medicare in the total amount of 

$24,935.00. Respondent is held jointly and severally liable for this amount with his co-

defendants. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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27 

28 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE; Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

and that following the hearing, the Board issue a decision: 

 

1. Revoking or suspending Physician Assistant Number PA-12521, issued to David J. 

Garrison, P.A. 

2. Ordeling him to pay the Board the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3; 
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3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: MonJ., IS 2ot5 
GLENN L. MITCHELL, JR. 
Executive Officer 
Physician Assistant Board 
State of California 

Complainant 
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